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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Welcome to today's

          3  hearing of the City Council's Committee on

          4  Transportation.  My name is John Liu. I have the

          5  privilege of chairing the Committee.

          6                 First, let me apologize for the delay

          7  in the start of our hearing.  Our colleagues in the

          8  Education Committee had a hearing go on past the

          9  appointed time, and justifiably so because they were

         10  hearing a very important topic.

         11                 We want to get this hearing underway,

         12  I want to thank in advance the members of the

         13  Administration, and the members of the general

         14  public for their patience in waiting for this

         15  hearing to commence.

         16                 Today, the Committee will consider

         17  Proposed Intro. Number 185- A.  This is a second

         18  hearing on the proposed legislation that seeks to

         19  create a notification and review process, in the

         20  event that a publicly mapped street is closed, or is

         21  proposed to be closed for more than 45 days.

         22                 The purpose of the legislation is to

         23  keep the affected community informed of any proposed

         24  or actual street closure, partial or complete.  And,

         25  to permit the local community the opportunity to
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          2  request a reassessment and community impact finding,

          3  should the street remained closed, or should it be

          4  projected to be closed for more than 45 days.

          5                 The council member in whose district

          6  the street at issue is located is also to be

          7  notified and may request a reassessment and

          8  Community Impact Finding.  The involvement of the

          9  affected community and its local elected

         10  representative is critical to ensuring that the

         11  reasons why the street is closed are valid, and that

         12  no other reasonable alternative exists to accomplish

         13  the objective for which the street is closed.

         14                 A partial or complete street closure

         15  for any length of time can be extremely disruptive

         16  to efficient pedestrian and vehicular traffic

         17  movement, and to the local environment and economy.

         18  A street close often creates difficulties for

         19  persons seeking to access local residents and

         20  businesses.  Moreover, the lack of access to

         21  business often has a devastating impact on the local

         22  economy.  The notification and review mechanisms

         23  contained in Proposed Intro. Number 185- A are

         24  directed at ensuring that a street is closed for a

         25  proper reason, that no feasible and less disruptive

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  alternative exists, and that economic and logistic

          3  impediments are minimized.

          4                 For clarification purposes, this bill

          5  has been revised which explains why it is an A-

          6  version, and not merely the amended version to be

          7  heard today.

          8                 We define a street closure to mean a

          9  complete or partial closure of a public way,

         10  including, but not limited to, limited access for

         11  various reasons, such as security.

         12                 The revised bill would also exempt

         13  the Department of Transportation from the provisions

         14  related to closures that exceed 45 days, for those

         15  instances where actual on- going construction

         16  results in only a portion, but not an entire street

         17  closure.

         18                 As I have done in the past, I commend

         19  my colleague for introducing this legislation.  In

         20  particular, I acknowledge Council Member Alan Gerson

         21  representing District 1, who has been primarily

         22  responsible for bringing this bill forward.  His

         23  district includes much of Lower Manhattan, and his

         24  constituents have been most affected by the numerous

         25  and often repetitive street closings, largely due to
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          2  construction activity in the aftermath of the World

          3  Trade Center disaster.

          4                 While the concentration of street

          5  closings are in Lower Manhattan, the issue does have

          6  citywide application, and I am pleased that this

          7  Committee is taking an additional look at this issue

          8  today.

          9                 At this point, let me turn the floor

         10  over to Council Member Alan Gerson who truly has

         11  been championing the needs of his district in Lower

         12  Manhattan, and as important, pushing forth progress

         13  on this important bill.

         14                 Council Member Alan Gerson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         16  very much, Mr. Chair.  I will endeavor to be very

         17  brief because I am very eager to hear the words from

         18  the Administration, and I am especially eager to

         19  hear the testimony from the community, who's

         20  testimony will much more clearly make the case for

         21  the necessary legislative redress, which this bill

         22  would implement.

         23                 But, before I do that, I must Mr.

         24  Chair thank you for your leadership and your

         25  commitment, not only to this bill, and to the
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          2  community of Lower Manhattan and Chinatown,

          3  currently greatly impacted by the failure to have

          4  this bill on the books, but indeed, to your

          5  commitment to our entire City and to ensuring the

          6  best and most sensible transportation traffic

          7  policies.  I have said it before, that our City is

          8  lucky to have Council Member John Liu as our Chair

          9  and Steward of our Transportation and Traffic

         10  network, and the community I represent is fortune to

         11  have, in you, a great ally and friend.  And, I thank

         12  you on behalf of all of my community.

         13                 Just very briefly, Mr. Chair, as you

         14  summarized the provisions of the bill, but to put in

         15  it context, this bill seeks justice, this bill seeks

         16  reasonableness, nothing more.  This bill applies to

         17  full, long- term street closures of the entire

         18  street, basic review processes which we apply to

         19  just about every other situation in this City, which

         20  could have an impact on day to day community life.

         21  This bill does not prohibit, or in any way, inhibit

         22  street closures, when those closures are necessary

         23  for cases of security, first and foremost, or for

         24  any other reason whatsoever.  This bill simply says,

         25  to the extent possible, communities need advance
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          2  notification.  This bill then says, if you keep an

          3  entire street closed for more than 45 days, meet

          4  with the community, meet with people involved with

          5  community life, hear the problems that will result

          6  from the closure, and if at the end of the day you

          7  still have to keep the street closed, then develop

          8  and put in place a plan to the extent possible,

          9  redress and address the concerns of the community.

         10                 In closing, we will hear testimony

         11  from the Director, or we have heard testimony, I

         12  should say, from the Director of Emergency Services

         13  of a local hospital, who will say that lives are at

         14  risk and ambulance response time is delayed because

         15  there was no plan to enable ambulances to be pre-

         16  cleared or in any other way to get through current

         17  security.  We will hear testimony about great

         18  hardships to seniors, and to other people, in

         19  accessing Access- A- Ride or public transportation.

         20  We will hear testimony of the loss of business to

         21  small businesses, and the downturn of the economy.

         22  We will hear testimony, not only on Park Row but in

         23  the Wall Street area of Lower Manhattan as to how

         24  unremediated street closures have made difficult

         25  situations unnecessarily worse.
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          2                 Again, I want to let the community

          3  because they can address and articulate these issues

          4  far better than me because these are the people

          5  living with it.

          6                 But in closing, Mr. Chair, I want to

          7  say I am disappointed to say the least that between

          8  this last hearing and this current hearing, the

          9  Administration has not come forward to present to us

         10  a bill or language which could accomplish these

         11  objectives which would satisfy their concerns.  We

         12  endeavored to incorporate the concerns raised at the

         13  last hearing by the Administration, as the Chair

         14  outlined, we made several modifications taking

         15  account your testimony.  I hope and I trust that

         16  following this hearing we will immediately begin to

         17  try and work together to come up with a piece of

         18  legislation which will deal with this situation.  I

         19  hope we can do this jointly in the interest of good

         20  government, but one way or the other I remain

         21  committed to seeing that this legislation moves

         22  forward, and before the summertime receives a vote

         23  of this Committee in the full Council.  I hope we

         24  could do it together, but one way or the other, we

         25  have to get the job done.
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          2                 Again, Mr. Chair, I thank you and I

          3  thank my colleagues, and I will just conclude that

          4  while the immediate issue is not a couple of streets

          5  in Lower Manhattan, the same situation can happen

          6  any place in the City, and this bill would apply any

          7  place in the City to protect all City residents.

          8  Other cities have similar procedures, there is no

          9  reason why New York should not have a procedure

         10  which other cities have recognized as necessary.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         13  Member Gerson.

         14                 We are also joined by Council Member

         15  Miguel Martinez from Manhattan, a member of this

         16  Committee, Council Member Helen Sears from Queens, a

         17  member of this Committee, and Council Member Sara

         18  Gonzalez from Brooklyn, as a member of this

         19  Committee, and we were joined before by Council

         20  Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx, he

         21  unfortunately had other engagements to attend to.

         22                 Today we will be hearing important

         23  testimony on this bill.  We will not, however,

         24  conduct a vote in this Committee on this bill, but I

         25  am optimistic that with the strong efforts of
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          2  Council Member Gerson, and with our working with the

          3  Administration on putting together this kind of

          4  process, that we will be able to vote on this bill

          5  in this Committee within the next couple of months,

          6  certainly before the summertime rolls around.

          7                 At this point, let me also thank the

          8  staff of this Committee, Mitch Schwartz, our

          9  legislative Counsel, and Roberto Ragone, our Policy

         10  Analyst for this Committee.

         11                 And, at this point, it is our

         12  pleasure to welcome the representatives of the

         13  Administration.  We have David Woloch, Deputy

         14  Commissioner for the Department of Transportation,

         15  and Joe Noto, the Mitigation Coordinator from the

         16  Department of Transportation, and also from the New

         17  York Police Department, Deputy Chief John Colgan,

         18  and Sergeant Martin Gleeson.

         19                 Thank you for your patience today,

         20  and welcome.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Good afternoon,

         22  Chairman Liu, Councilman Gerson, and members of the

         23  Transportation Committee.

         24                 My name is David Woloch, and I am the

         25  Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs at the New
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          2  York City Department of Transportation.  With me

          3  today, is Joe Noto, DOT's Executive Director of

          4  Construction, Mitigation and Coordination, Marty

          5  Gleeson from the Police Department, and also Deputy

          6  Chief, John Colgan from the Police Department.

          7                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          8  discuss Proposed Intro. 185- A, which would mandate

          9  notification and review processes in the event of

         10  the closure of the publicly mapped street.  As

         11  stated in my testimony on this bill last June,

         12  although the spirit of this bill is one shared by

         13  this agency, the Commissioner, and the Mayor, we

         14  cannot support this bill as there are already

         15  mechanisms in place that provide public notice, and

         16  it would result in burdensome and unnecessary costs

         17  to the City, as well as to overall construction and

         18  development.

         19                 Providing proper and adequate notice

         20  of upcoming major projects requiring street closures

         21  is of great importance to DOT.  Many of our efforts

         22  to improve the communication of information via the

         23  City's website are aimed at achieving transparency

         24  and providing constituents with information

         25  regarding DOT's operations and projects.  In keeping
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          2  with this spirit, we have complete certain

          3  initiatives whose sole aim is to provide New Yorkers

          4  with information regarding work happening on, under

          5  and next to their streets.

          6                 One example of this is our placement

          7  of Traffic Advisories every week on the City's

          8  website, whereby we are able to make information

          9  regarding major street closures available to the

         10  public.  In addition to this, I am happy to report

         11  that an initiative mentioned in my testimony last

         12  year, has been up and running since last November.

         13  It is a web- based system on DOT's website that is

         14  designed to give all New Yorkers access to

         15  comprehensive and up- to- date information on all

         16  current street construction permits in their

         17  communities.

         18                 This application is user- friendly,

         19  and allows one to search for active street

         20  construction permits by borough, by Community Board,

         21  by location, or by permit number.  This application

         22  further allows one to break down a search by

         23  specific permit type.  The results of each search

         24  provides a listing of all permits in the specific

         25  area, including the name of each permittee, the
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          2  street limits of the activity, its start and

          3  completion date, the permit type and description of

          4  the work being performed.  This application is

          5  serving as a tremendous resource in City residents

          6  in providing them accurate information on what is

          7  happening on their streets.  Furthermore, DOT is

          8  piloting a program in Lower Manhattan, using GIS

          9  technology, which allows the public to view a map of

         10  their active permits in their community.

         11                 Outreach on large projects, including

         12  DDC roadway projects, DOT bridge projects, and New

         13  York State highway projects, with an impact on the

         14  City's streets is already substantial. First,

         15  preliminary designs are circulated to the community

         16  board and elected officials for comment.

         17                 Second, the community is again

         18  contacted once designs are finalized and before the

         19  commencement of the project. Other methods of

         20  outreach may include use of a community liaison,

         21  information disseminated through the press or

         22  through the borough commissioner offices, pre-

         23  construction meetings, list serves, and newsletters.

         24  The DDC has a Project Browser on its website which

         25  includes all of its project and which provides
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          2  information such as the area map and project name.

          3  This database may be searched by community board,

          4  council district, and physical location.  Outreach

          5  on large upcoming community projects is also done by

          6  other entities that work under our streets,

          7  including the MTA, ConEd, and other utilities.

          8                 As with the bill's prior notice

          9  requirement, the type of analysis called for in this

         10  bill is already done for projects with significant

         11  community impact.  Many of our large construction

         12  projects do not stop at a pre- construction analysis

         13  of the impact of the project, but are subject to

         14  ongoing monitoring in order to address any

         15  unforeseen impacts.  For all permit requests, large

         16  and small, DOT's Office of Construction Mitigation

         17  and Coordination is charged with assuring that

         18  permit stipulations balance the importance of the

         19  work done with the impact on the community.  We are

         20  always mindful of safety, mobility, environmental

         21  and economic impacts.

         22                 This bill, however, even in its

         23  amended form, would place a burdensome and onerous

         24  requirement on DOT, as additional staff would be

         25  required to fulfill its provisions.  This bill would
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          2  still require DOT to notify, within 48 hours, the

          3  Community Board and Council member whose district a

          4  project is in of any partial or full street closure

          5  or permit issued.

          6                 The Department issues over 170,000

          7  permits each year for street construction activity,

          8  most of which represents small partial closures.

          9  The notification responsibility you propose would

         10  require significant resources primarily for

         11  information that would probably not be that useful.

         12  As I said earlier, there is ample outreach for large

         13  and long- term construction projects, and we have

         14  made DOT permit information available to those who

         15  are interested.

         16                 In addition, subdivisions B and C of

         17  the legislation would still apply to full street

         18  closures that are longer than 45 days, and that are

         19  either undertaken for City projects or private

         20  entities who come to us for a permit.  Of the

         21  170,000 construction permits issued each year for

         22  street construction activity, permits are granted

         23  for approximately 300 projects that require a full

         24  closure of greater than 45 days.

         25                 We estimate the our budget would need
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          2  to increase by nearly $700,000 in order to fund the

          3  staff necessary to review the annual approximate 300

          4  analyses.

          5                 On top of that, the cost of producing

          6  studies on each initiative is estimated at

          7  approximately $7 million annually.           As

          8  nearly all of these full closures are undertaken as

          9  part of government sponsored projects, taxpayers

         10  would also have to absorb most of this cost as well.

         11                 Proposed Intro. 185- A would further

         12  damage construction and development by making

         13  projects susceptible to challenge and creating the

         14  potential for a proliferation of unfinished projects

         15  in the event of a successful challenge.  This

         16  potential outcome would not only have a substantial

         17  negative impact upon economic development, but could

         18  also pose a safety hazard.

         19                 This bill was also amended to capture

         20  street closures that take place for security

         21  reasons.  I would like to point out, and this is a

         22  very important point, that DOT does not issue

         23  security- related permits, nor does it ever close

         24  streets for security reasons.

         25                 The responsibility for protecting the
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          2  City and its citizens for security- related concerns

          3  falls on the Police Department.

          4                 Although we agree with the spirit of

          5  what the Council is trying to achieve, we must

          6  respectfully disagree with the manner in which this

          7  bill attempts to accomplish this.  The solutions

          8  proposed by this bill seem unnecessary as DOT and

          9  DDC have already instituted significant mechanisms

         10  for providing adequate notice to the community for

         11  construction closures.

         12                 In addition, this bill is potentially

         13  harmful to the City by virtue of the added delay and

         14  additional costs which will be incurred as a result

         15  of the added analysis requirements. Enactment of

         16  this bill would negatively impact the economic well

         17  being of the City, as well as the safety of its

         18  citizens without addressing the goal that I think

         19  you have stated you would like to achieve.

         20                 Like the Council, we also recognize

         21  the importance of working with the community boards

         22  and elected officials and ensuring that they have

         23  sufficient information regarding projects that

         24  affect their communities.

         25                 We appreciate the Council's concern
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          2  in this matter, and welcome the opportunity to work

          3  with you in order to improve the manner in which

          4  such information is made available.

          5                 Once again, thank you for the

          6  opportunity to testify before you today.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 Is there any prepared testimony from

         10  the representatives of the NYPD, or are you hear to

         11  answer questions?

         12                 MR. COLGAN:  Mr. Chairman, we are

         13  here to answer any question directed to us.  We have

         14  no prepared testimony this afternoon.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Are you aware of

         16  the process that the DOT currently follows according

         17  to Deputy Commissioner Woloch's testimony with

         18  regard to street closures?

         19                 MR. COLGAN:  I am aware of that

         20  process but I believe that closures of the City

         21  streets on a temporary basis by the Police

         22  Department are permitted otherwise by law.  I have

         23  not, nor do I intend in the near future, to apply

         24  for a permit to close a city street for security

         25  reasons.  That would be one, contrary to our mandate
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          2  under the City Charter, and it would significantly

          3  impact, negatively, my ability to protect the

          4  citizenry and execute my duties as the Executive

          5  Officer in the NYPD's Counterterrorism Bureau.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The Deputy

          7  Commissioner testified about the process before

          8  which street permits, street closure permits are

          9  currently administered by the DOT, and the process

         10  by which the DOT undertakes to notify the community

         11  of street closures, and why those street closures

         12  are taken.

         13                 First, I agree that, with Council

         14  Member Gerson, that this bill is needed to beef- up

         15  those procedures.  It may be onerous for the

         16  Department of Transportation to provide that kind of

         17  disclosure and information to communities but I

         18  think we also have to understand the burden that

         19  communities suffer through, when their streets are

         20  closed.  I think communities deserve to know why

         21  their streets are closed and for how long the

         22  streets expect to be closed.

         23                 In the case of the street closure

         24  that really has been the catalyst for this bill, the

         25  closure of Park Row, what has been the process, if
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          2  any, that the NYPD has taken in, not only closing

          3  the street after September 11th, but keeping it

          4  closed two and a half years after the fact.

          5                 MR. COLGAN:  Sir, I will speak to

          6  those issues as I spoke to them many times before,

          7  meetings that we attended at the request of Council

          8  Member Gerson.

          9                 The Police Department is loathe as a

         10  public service organization, to unreasonably impact

         11  the movement of pedestrians or vehicles on the open

         12  city streets.  Having said that, we are loathe to

         13  fail to protect the communities we are sworn to

         14  serve.

         15                 Mr. Gerson said earlier in his

         16  prepared remarks, at the opening of this hearing,

         17  that there were similar provisions in other cities.

         18  Sir, I would suggest that there is no other city in

         19  America with a 16- acre hole in the ground.  We look

         20  at operational security requirements, which include

         21  the following, there are five elements, we look at

         22  the intelligence out there, that the National

         23  Security Act precludes me from discussing in this

         24  forum.  We look at the threat that is a function of

         25  that intelligence that we have available to us.  We
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          2  look at the vulnerabilities that accrue to that

          3  threat.  We look at the risks that we face, and we

          4  attempt as managers in the New York City Police

          5  Department to mitigate that risk.  And then, we take

          6  counter measures against those threats to protect

          7  ourselves and our community.

          8                 Park Row is a very, very definitive

          9  attack vector against One Police Plaza.  Jordan

         10  Gruson (phonetic) did not have the benefit of our

         11  counsel when he designed the building, or when

         12  Castagna and Sons (phonetic) constructed it but

         13  those base- building systems that keep Police

         14  Headquarters functioning, that assist in the running

         15  of our E911 system at MetroTech, those elements that

         16  are critical to our ability to operate our Command

         17  and Control out of Police Plaza, are those elements

         18  exposed along that Park Row Attack Vector, and it is

         19  for that reason that we have pushed our outer

         20  perimeter back as far as we have.

         21                 We are cognizant of the significant

         22  level of inconvenience, the significant level of

         23  disruption in the daily lives of the members of that

         24  community.  But, I have said before and I will say

         25  again, Sir, that that level of inconvenience is an
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          2  inconvenience levied against the community in order

          3  to protect it. There will be no one in the

          4  community, in the immediate vicinity of One Police

          5  Plaza well served by a successful attack against

          6  Police Headquarters.

          7                 Our analysis of attack scenarios

          8  around the country is one that suggests to us that

          9  our greatest threat is vehicle borne improvised

         10  explosive devices, and Sir, I submit to you today

         11  that that is what we are protecting against.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Could you identify

         13  yourself for the record?

         14                 MR. COLGAN:  Yes, Sir, I am Deputy

         15  Chief John Colgan, Executive Officer,

         16  Counterterrorism Bureau, New York City Police

         17  Department.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, we are

         19  joined by Council Member James Sanders, a member of

         20  this Committee from Queens.

         21                 Deputy Chief, I appreciate the

         22  comments that you provided us with, and I hope that

         23  there is no sense of indignation that we are even

         24  having this hearing.

         25                 This is an important issue to, not
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          2  only the community in Lower Manhattan, but many

          3  other communities in the City as well.  And, no one

          4  is in favor of loosening security measures that are

          5  necessary to protect this City, and various

          6  communities.

          7                 What we are here to do today is to

          8  talk about this bill, that in no way says that the

          9  Police Department should not be protecting the

         10  communities, and we do not question how you make

         11  your determinations.  But, the objective of this

         12  bill is to provide, in the future, notification when

         13  streets are to be closed, and in the case of streets

         14  that are currently closed, to explain, to provide a

         15  more sound justification so that communities can

         16  also determine or help provide input as to whether

         17  the current measures are necessary or not.

         18                 In your view, Deputy Chief, is One

         19  Police Plaza the most significant target in the City

         20  of New York?

         21                 MR. COLGAN:  No Sir, it is not, and I

         22  would not care to discuss what I believe is.

         23                 I will say, however, in response to

         24  earlier comment, there are certainly no indignation

         25  on the part of the Police Department with respect to
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          2  the normal conduct of City business to discuss any

          3  issue in the appropriate pubic forum, such as this

          4  one.           My intent is merely to argue my

          5  point, that I do not believe the language in 185- A

          6  has application to the New York City Police

          7  Department.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think your

          9  comments did focus, and rightfully so, on security

         10  measures and protecting our City, and our people, in

         11  the aftermath of September 11th.

         12                 I just asked you if One Police Plaza

         13  was the biggest target in our City,

         14  and--.

         15                 MR. COLGAN:  Certainly not, Sir.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Without identifying

         17  any other possible targets, have all of the streets

         18  around those potential targets been closed as well?

         19                 MR. COLGAN:  No, Sir.  As I stated

         20  earlier in my remarks, we are loathe to close any

         21  street.  We are loathe to negatively impact the

         22  movement of pedestrians and vehicles in this City.

         23                 I will submit, Sir, that there are

         24  many vested interest groups around this City, many

         25  powerful groups, that would be very happy to have
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          2  the Police Department make an argument that the

          3  streets in and around their facility should be

          4  closed.

          5                 We do so, Sir, after very careful

          6  consideration of all the elements that we would

          7  routinely consider, and we do so only when we

          8  believe it is the only way to protect an asset.

          9                 For that reason, Sir, we have

         10  recommended the closure of no streets outside of the

         11  area immediately around Police Headquarters and the

         12  MCC.  We have significant concerns for the Federal

         13  Correctional Facility, which is in the shadow of our

         14  Police Headquarters building as well.

         15                 In Lower Manhattan, the only other

         16  area where we are negatively, in the opinion of

         17  those who have written me letters, impacting

         18  pedestrian and vehicular traffic is in the area of

         19  the Wall Street Financial District, Sir.  And,

         20  again, it is after very careful consideration, very

         21  careful analysis of our threat perspective which

         22  suggests that the use of a vehicle- borne improvised

         23  explosive device, at those sites, is a serious

         24  consideration that we have to protect against.  The

         25  only effective means we have of doing that with our
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          2  current technology is to close the intersections

          3  that we have.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You mentioned the

          5  federal buildings that are in the vicinity of One

          6  Police Plaza.

          7                 MR. COLGAN:  Yes, Sir, specifically

          8  the correctional center.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The collection of

         10  these

         11  buildings, is the collection of these buildings the

         12  biggest target in New York City?

         13                 MR. COLGAN:  No, Sir.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, there again, I

         15  still have to ask my earlier question, which is, why

         16  then aren't the streets around the other targets,

         17  targets similar to this collection of One Police

         18  Plaza and the Federal Correction Facility, why

         19  aren't those street closed?

         20                 MR. COLGAN:  Some of the greatest

         21  targets are protected by their anonymity, in fact,

         22  Mr. Gerson had presented us with an issue of a

         23  particular building that houses several city

         24  agencies in his Councilmanic District, and we asked

         25  him to please keep the information he had about that
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          2  building confidential because it was protected

          3  against attack by its relative anonymity.

          4  And, the same would apply for other high- value

          5  targets.  There are certain building, for instance,

          6  in the financial- critical infrastructure of this

          7  country that are in Lower Manhattan but because they

          8  are generally not known, they have a level of

          9  protection that places like Police Headquarters, the

         10  New York Stock Exchange, and the Metropolitan

         11  Correctional Center have.  Everybody knows where the

         12  Pentagon is, everybody knows where One Police Plaza

         13  is, everybody knows where the New York Stock

         14  Exchange is.  There are many other people who do not

         15  know where many other things are in New York City.

         16                 For that reason, we have asked City

         17  government to carefully consider regulations

         18  relative to information put out about critical

         19  infrastructure on the City's website, and we have

         20  asked members of the Council not to release publicly

         21  information about buildings in their Councilmanic

         22  Districts that are very sensitive.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, does this

         24  mean that, is Police Headquarters going to move

         25  anywhere, anytime soon?
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          2                 MR. COLGAN:  I do not believe so,

          3  Sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  What does that mean

          5  for Park Row?

          6                 MR. COLGAN:  What it means for Park

          7  Row is that we have to continue to explore because

          8  we have, as a Department, made representations that

          9  there are ways to mitigate the risk to Police

         10  Headquarters posed by the entry into the parking lot

         11  for Chatham Green.  That is our biggest concern

         12  right there, that would possibly, Mr. Gerson I

         13  believe is familiar with some of the recommendations

         14  we have made, which talks to standoff against our

         15  petroleum bulk storage facility at Police

         16  Headquarters.

         17                 Having said that though, we are not

         18  looking for an attack vector 900 feet in length

         19  against the critical skin of our building.  But, the

         20  largest number of complaints that I have heard about

         21  the closure of Park Row, accrue to the current

         22  placement of a Delta Vehicle Barrier in front of a

         23  residential vehicular access into the Chatham Green

         24  parking lot.  That particular issue has, I think,

         25  represented 95 percent of all the mail that I have
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          2  gotten on the Park Row issue.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I will have some

          4  follow up questions but let me turn it over to my

          5  colleagues for their questions.

          6                 Council Member Gerson is going to

          7  defer to members of the Committee first.

          8                 Council Member Sears.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair.

         11                 If I can get back to a more global

         12  picture for the moment because there were several

         13  things that were asked.

         14                 The DOT says that they do not close

         15  streets, and the safety, that that is turned over to

         16  the Police Department.  Does that mean that you are

         17  able to make a distinction from the information that

         18  DOT gives you, as to those streets that are going to

         19  be closed for some time, and you go out and you look

         20  at them to see if there is a safety issue involved?

         21                 I am a little confused as to what the

         22  Deputy Commissioner said and how the responsibility

         23  to the Police Department makes that shift.  So, if

         24  you could clarify that, that would be very helpful.

         25                 MR. COLGAN:  Well, I will not speak
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          2  to what the Deputy Commissioner said.

          3                 I did not interrupt his remarks as

          4  you may have, so, I would ask him to speak to that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Oh, right,

          6  okay.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure, let me

          8  just go back to what DOT's responsibility is.

          9                 We issue permits that are

         10  construction related, construction that is happening

         11  on top of the streets, construction that is

         12  happening under the streets, building construction

         13  that is happening next to streets.  And, that

         14  accounts for that universe of 170,000 permits.

         15                 There are other activities that occur

         16  on streets that do not require entities to come to

         17  us for a permit.  For instance, street fairs or film

         18  shoots, where there is another agency where entities

         19  have to get those permits from.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I know that.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  For security

         22  related closures, the Police Department does not

         23  have to come to the Department of Transportation for

         24  a permit.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, but when
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          2  you issue the permits for a street to be closed, and

          3  it is going to be of some duration, does that

          4  information go to the Police Department, that they

          5  check out the site?  I think that is what I am

          6  asking, and what I need clarification because I

          7  believe you stated that you do not close streets for

          8  safety reasons.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  For security

         10  reasons.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  For security

         12  reasons, yes, I am using the wrong word, for

         13  security reasons that that is given over to the

         14  Police Department to do that.  So, that is where I

         15  am looking for the clarification.

         16                 If you close a street, and it has a

         17  rather lengthy permit, does that get over to the

         18  Police Department as whether it involves security or

         19  not, or would they do that on their own?

         20                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We will always

         21  go through construction related closures with the

         22  Police Department and the Fire Department.  So, for

         23  instance, if there is going to be a closure of a

         24  major street, we would want both those agencies to

         25  be aware of it, so they understand the impact on
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          2  their missions.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, and if

          4  that street is closed for security reasons, and

          5  believe me I respect and I am very happy that we do

          6  have in place the security that we do, we keep

          7  asking for more because we do not think it is really

          8  sufficient, and as Councilman Vallone has always

          9  stated, we are not getting enough dollars for that.

         10  So, I am very cognizant and appreciate that, but is

         11  a community notified that a street can be closed for

         12  an undetermined duration due to security reasons?

         13  Is that ever done?

         14                 MR. COLGAN:  In the two streets

         15  closures that I am intimately acquainted with, those

         16  at Police Headquarters and those in the vicinity of

         17  the New York Stock Exchange, there was community

         18  notification prior to 9/11 when we first put the

         19  first four vehicle barriers at Police Headquarters,

         20  which now form our inner perimeter.

         21                 When the outer perimeter went up, it

         22  was much later on and there was notification after

         23  the fact.  Because it was driven by a desire to

         24  explain why the streets would be closed for a

         25  significant period of time.  We use the term
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          2  temporary, and by that we mean, not forever.

          3                 Having said that, we have also

          4  articulated in public forums, to which we have been

          5  invited, that that means that these are closures

          6  that will be initiated whenever we are at our

          7  heightened state of alert.

          8                 The United States is currently at a

          9  National Threat Condition level of yellow, we are at

         10  orange.  We have argued, as members of the

         11  Counterterrorism Division and the Counterterrorism

         12  Bureau to our Department, that those measures should

         13  remain in place until we are at low condition,

         14  green.  I do not believe that we will be a low

         15  condition, green, in the near term.  That is a happy

         16  circumstance that we all live for.  That is what we

         17  are in business to produce, low condition, green.

         18                 Having said that, were we to go back

         19  to low condition, green, our function would be to

         20  ratchet up those defenses whenever intelligence

         21  suggested we should do so.  Failure to do that would

         22  be a dereliction of duty on our part.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I think the

         24  issue is really not that in the dereliction of your

         25  duties, and I think everyone here fully understands
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          2  the importance of security, and I do not think

          3  anyone near Park Place, anyone in that area would

          4  look to have anything reopened that would really be

          5  a threat to their security.  I would find that very

          6  hard to believe with the residents that are in that

          7  area.

          8                 What I think is probably missing, I

          9  think what is missing is a proper link between the

         10  information that can be available, without breaching

         11  any security programs and plans that are in place,

         12  so that, the lay person on the street because I find

         13  that whatever they know, if they think it is for

         14  their own good, they are going to accept that, and

         15  that would be an end to it.

         16                 For instance, I think a whole

         17  population if left out when we talk about websites

         18  and computers.  As much as we are in the age of

         19  technology, there is a very specific population in

         20  the City of New York, and that is a growing, aging

         21  senior population, and most of those from those

         22  first and second generations do not have computers.

         23  And, you know what, the only way that you can reach

         24  people is the resources that are available.

         25                 Fifty- one members have their pulse

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  on eight million people, and that is what should be

          3  used to do that.  Community Boards do not have the

          4  facilities that we do, they do not have the money,

          5  nor do they have the resources, nor do they have the

          6  amount or numbers that we can reach.

          7                 So, I think maybe my suggestion is,

          8  how can you communicate without breaching any

          9  programs that you have in place for security that

         10  better inform the public, and at the same time, I

         11  think you will find that they would be most

         12  cooperative.  I really think, Councilman Gerson,

         13  that might be an issue for you to work with.

         14                 MR. COLGAN:  Well, Council member, I

         15  appreciate you remarks.  I am no stranger to

         16  speaking before the 59 Community Boards in the City

         17  of New York.  For that reason, I was delighted to

         18  accept Mr. Gerson's invitation to several three hour

         19  meetings. I think that last one of which was at P.S.

         20  1 on Henry Street.

         21                 Having heard you comments about the

         22  distance that some of our community members have to

         23  technology, we look to augment information we put

         24  out on our own website, with those person to person

         25  meetings in either the Councilmanic Districts or in
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          2  Community Board meetings.  I have not been asked to

          3  attend any meeting that I was not happy to attend,

          4  and it would be my pleasure to discuss to the

          5  degree, as openly as we can within our operational

          6  security parameters, the reasons wherefore we have

          7  closed streets, or the amount of time that we expect

          8  them to be closed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  If I may

         10  suggest that you add to your 59 Community Boards,

         11  and I have respect for Community Boards, but I

         12  stated publicly, the council members are not the

         13  Community Boards.

         14                 We far exceed the authority and

         15  responsibilities, they are advisory, we are not

         16  advisory.  We are a legislative body, and that is a

         17  very distinct difference, and I would suggest that

         18  you call and have a meeting with 51 council members

         19  because what you have to say is very key, it is

         20  prevalent, and it would be very helpful to all of us

         21  to communicate better with our constituents. And, I

         22  would suggest that you arrange such a meeting.

         23                 MR. COLGAN:  Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         25  much.

                                                            38

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 MR. COLGAN:  Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          6  Member Sears.

          7                 Council Member Sanders.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair.  A very timely and difficult question

         10  that we ponder here; the proper balance between

         11  public safety and security versus public access and

         12  knowledge.

         13                 I, like everyone in here, are really

         14  torn and I think in one sense it is horrible we even

         15  have to have the question but we must raise the

         16  question, nonetheless.  These are the times that we

         17  live in.

         18                 It might be useful, Mr. Chair, for a

         19  friendly amendment to the bill to give a carve- out

         20  to the Police Department stating that no street can

         21  be closed for more than ten days, or some variation

         22  on these things before going to a commissioner.  I

         23  can see where if a tragedy or some horrible

         24  situation occurs where there had to be immediate

         25  action, we may be tying the hands tighter than we
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          2  envision, so that is for a consideration.

          3                 Low condition, green, wouldn't we

          4  love to see these days again?  I fear that we will

          5  have many a year between now, and low condition,

          6  green.

          7                 So, perhaps, the proposals that you

          8  have suggested, gentlemen, are too restrictive in

          9  that sense.  Yellow, or some other condition where

         10  we are moving towards green, I am very aware, as a

         11  historian, I am very aware of tragedies that have

         12  hit England, in London especially, where that is

         13  perhaps the same tragedy or similar tragedy we are

         14  trying to avert here.  In those narrow passages of

         15  Wall Street, you are right, there is a real problem

         16  here, and we should be clear to speak of that.

         17                 But, I am interested in knowing what

         18  alternatives to street closings have been pursued.

         19  What alternatives, if any, perhaps there are other

         20  measures that will not block commerce, that will

         21  not, there are many ways of course for the

         22  terrorists to win, and one way is to change your

         23  whole state of life, which is one of the things we

         24  need to battle against also.

         25                 Have there been other alternatives
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          2  considered in terms of street closing?  And, I do

          3  not know who I should raise that one to?

          4                 MR. COLGAN:  Sir, I believe it is a

          5  function of the threat that you are looking to

          6  protect against.  What we are looking to protect

          7  against is a vehicle- borne improvised explosive

          8  device.  We are looking to protect about somebody,

          9  we are looking to protect against somebody driving

         10  1,000 pounds of C4 in a pickup truck into the lobby

         11  of a critical asset.

         12                 The Department of Homeland Security

         13  has identified, what they call, eleven critical

         14  infrastructure sectors, and five key asset areas.

         15  Previous to the creation of DHS, as a community of

         16  law enforcement personnel, critical infrastructure

         17  security specialists, looked at thirteen critical

         18  infrastructure sectors. Looking at the threat that

         19  we are looking to mitigate, something short of

         20  street closures that allow for screening of the

         21  vehicle load, is something beyond us.

         22                 We look at the lessons of Riyadh,

         23  Cobart Towers, we look at the lessons that the DOD

         24  learned at their military bases around the world.

         25  We know that the planning for the 2001 attacks on
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          2  the World Trade Center started in February of 1993.

          3  And, we try to devise a means of mitigation that is

          4  not un- Giulianionerous. That gives us an

          5  opportunity to mitigate the risk.

          6                 Even with the closures in the

          7  vicinity of Police Headquarters, there is

          8  substantial mitigation, but there is significant

          9  risk.  To detonate a several pound vehicle- borne

         10  improvised explosive devise, in that immediate

         11  vicinity, would have catastrophic cascading impact

         12  to the community, so what we attempt to do is put

         13  the outer perimeter far back enough that no value,

         14  in the mind of the terrorist, accrues against the

         15  target of opportunity.  We want to make the target

         16  site unattractive to the attacker.

         17                 I have not figured out how to do that

         18  against the vehicle- borne improvised explosive

         19  device, except for street screening and street

         20  closures, nor by the way, has the United States

         21  Department of Defense.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Sir, as a

         23  former Marine who has worked with C4, I can attest

         24  that anything, one- third of what you are talking

         25  about, would be catastrophic in that area.
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          2                 MR. COLGAN:  I agree with that, Sir,

          3  I merely referenced what has been used around the

          4  country, my apologies, around the globe.  We are as

          5  concerned with C4, as we are with Anfo (phonetic).

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Sure.

          7                 MR. COLGAN:  But, we look at those

          8  threat scenarios, the Technical Support Working

          9  Group, TSWG, has compiled the white paper on

         10  vehicle- borne improvised explosive devices around

         11  the globe for the last three years.

         12                 We study that as if it is scripture,

         13  and we apply standardized solutions that have served

         14  the United States military, the British military and

         15  civil authorities, and have served us in the City.

         16                 One of the arguments we make about

         17  last of incidents since 9/11, is that we are on

         18  guard, 24 hours, seven days a week, and we are

         19  investing the NYPD's and the City's resources in

         20  protecting ourselves locally against a national

         21  security issue.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Well, I

         23  suspect that is Operation Atlas that you are

         24  speaking about?

         25                 MR. COLGAN:  One of many initiatives.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Wow, it may

          3  be useful to have a quiet briefing to members of the

          4  Committee, especially on the white paper, and to

          5  show by slides or whatever, what you are talking

          6  about.  But, at the same time, I fear that, I

          7  suspect that the Committee has a point or some of

          8  the people have a point when they speak of the

          9  indefinite closings.

         10                 It may be a good thing to

         11  periodically review closings, and I am talking about

         12  outside of the police circles.  I think that the New

         13  Yorkers as a whole are far more rational then many

         14  will give them credit for, as I am sure you will

         15  agree also. And that, if presented with information,

         16  you may get a better response and that may answer

         17  the questions that many of these good people are

         18  coming up with.

         19                 So, I just wanted to put that in that

         20  normally I am a hopeless liberal on many of these

         21  issues, and would look forward to the day when I can

         22  be that way on this issue again but the issue of New

         23  York safety is not one that anyone in this room

         24  takes for granted, and sometimes the gentlemen

         25  sitting before us may have a very worthy point.
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          2                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

          3                 Thank you, gentlemen.

          4                 MR. COLGAN:  Thank you, Sir.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          6  Member Sanders.

          7                 We do have questions, I have a couple

          8  of follow up questions.  Council Member Gerson has

          9  questions.

         10                 I would like to ask the next panel to

         11  prepare to testify.  That would be Danny Chen, Paul

         12  Lee, and Jeanie Chin, and Julie Menin.

         13                 I think, again, the discussion that

         14  we just had, it was appreciated and no one is

         15  questioning the need for heightened security

         16  awareness and security measures.

         17                 The question still comes back to

         18  using the Park Row example as how we go forward

         19  throughout this entire City.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Mr. Chair,

         21  can I beg your indulgence for a technical question?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes, please.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  There are

         24  other, I knew there was something I wanted to raise,

         25  has the technology of sniffing, bomb sniffing, it is
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          2  advanced enough that we can have these sensors, I

          3  know that we are doing a lot of testing in this

          4  country and other countries on ways of sensing bombs

          5  and seeing these things before?  If that is the

          6  case, then we might not need as many restrictions in

          7  the street but to alert people that you are driving

          8  through an area where we are absolutely looking at

          9  and measuring all of these things.  A technical

         10  point.

         11                 MR. COLGAN:  Sir, I am no expert on

         12  the matter but one of the things that I believe you

         13  are referencing is an ion- scan device.  They are

         14  most appropriately used to assess at an off- site

         15  location, parcels.  When you have a vehicle, if I am

         16  moving at 60 miles an hour, I am traveling at 88

         17  feet per second, no stationary ion- scan devise is

         18  going to be of any use.  If I have a flying spot

         19  technology Z- back scatter- band, which is a half-

         20  side, full spectrum X- ray of a vehicle, I can only

         21  assess that vehicle if it is moving at five miles an

         22  hour, and I would submit to you that the only way I

         23  can get a vehicle in Lower Manhattan to come to five

         24  miles an hour is to have it come through a double-

         25  barrier Sally- port Checkpoint, and Sir, we do, when
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          2  funded, use those technologies within those

          3  environments.

          4                 Our mail that goes through Police

          5  Headquarters is off the immediate site, put through

          6  such an ion- scan.  Those technologies are

          7  developing.  A lot of them are not commercial, off-

          8  the- shelf available, many of them are military

          9  technologies that are becoming available as COTS,

         10  commercial off- the- shelf but right now they would

         11  not do us much good for vehicles.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chair.  It may be, ah, Mr. Acting Chair, has

         14  there been a coup?  Well, then, I am the Acting

         15  Chair, how wise the former Chair was.  It may be a

         16  worthy thing to, for the Committee, to put its, some

         17  of its time and energy into requesting those

         18  technologies to come to New York City in areas as

         19  sensitive as these.

         20                 Under those conditions, you still can

         21  have vehicles coming through, they would have to

         22  stop, and it may be an interesting thing.

         23            Having said that, I am going to, is there

         24  any final word from this panel?

         25                 I believe that we have another panel.
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          2

          3                 Ah, a question, I stand corrected,

          4  Sir.

          5                 Council Member Gerson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

          7  very much, Mr. Chair, Pro Tem.

          8                 Deputy Chief, I certainly do not

          9  require any reminder that our City has a 16 acre

         10  hole in our midst, and I also believe that some of

         11  the other cities which have a procedure similar to

         12  the one we are seeking, are also major metropolises

         13  under heightened security alert, and review.

         14                 That being said, it is good to see

         15  you.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Same here, Sir.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you, I

         18  certainly respect and admire your professionalism

         19  and your commitment to assuring the safety of all

         20  New Yorkers, and I count myself as one of many

         21  staunch supporters of the work of the

         22  Counter-terrorism Unit in the Department, in making

         23  sure that we have the best possible security.

         24                 Let me make it clear, that nothing in

         25  this bill is intended in any way to undermine, delay
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          2  or hinder a determination by the Police Department,

          3  to close any thoroughfare for purposes of security

          4  with or without, upon need, any advance notice.

          5  And, if there is any language that the Department

          6  feels needs to be inserted to make that clear and to

          7  avoid any hindrances, of the sort I mentioned, then

          8  I implore you and the Department's attorney's,

          9  please after this hearing, let us have your input as

         10  to the language.  Again, so that we could be sure

         11  that the bill matches its intent.

         12                 Let me just ask you a few points

         13  though too, along those lines.  I presume that as

         14  you said, because as you said, the Department is

         15  loathe to close a street when it does not have to,

         16  you would normally undertake a internal review to

         17  ensure that closure remained the best and only

         18  viable alternative, and that you would normally

         19  explore all technologically feasible alternatives to

         20  closure, and if there was a need for technology or

         21  equipment to avoid a closure, for which you did not

         22  have adequate funding, you would notify the

         23  Department, which in turn, if necessary, would

         24  notify the Council to obtain the necessary funding.

         25                 I presume that is done as a matter of
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          2  course.

          3                 MR. COLGAN:  Sir, I can assure you

          4  that the Police Commissioner would find someone to

          5  replace me if we did not routinely reevaluate the

          6  assignment of uniformed police officers to street

          7  closures, for our staffing requirements, for every

          8  single officer who has to be on post 24/7 for a

          9  sensitive location.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well, that is

         11  a very good point.

         12                 MR. COLGAN:  I am required to have

         13  seven full- time equivalents.  It is extremely, it

         14  is extremely staff resource intensive, extremely.

         15  We do not do that without very careful consideration

         16  of the absolute requirement to protect against the

         17  perceived threat.  Additionally, if I may.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Sure.

         19                 MR. COLGAN:  Not necessarily on a

         20  monthly basis, but certainly no greater than on a

         21  monthly basis because we are always responding to

         22  active intelligence, we update our internal threat

         23  perspective, and we either ratch it up or ratch it

         24  down our resources at a particular site to meet the

         25  threat, to be consistent with our obligation to
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          2  protect the community we are sworn to serve.       We

          3  do not lightly close streets that require us to have

          4  police officers on that post because wherever they

          5  are, they are not elsewhere, where they might be

          6  needed.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And I take it

          8  then, based on that and your previous testimony,

          9  that you have no problems periodically, even less

         10  than monthly, reporting the results of the

         11  reassessment as to the need to continue or not

         12  closure, or to modify it, hypothetically as the case

         13  may be, to the community, obviously withholding

         14  information, the disclosure of which could undermine

         15  security?

         16                 I think you said you do not mind

         17  going to meetings and you have no problem making

         18  that type of a report or to the community, is that

         19  correct?

         20                 MR. COLGAN:  I, of course, do not

         21  mind going to meetings in execution of my public

         22  duties.

         23                 Having said that--.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  We do not

         25  want to overburden you.
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          2                 MR. COLGAN:  I do not believe it is

          3  possible for you to over burden me, Sir.

          4                 Having said that--.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Beware of

          6  what you say.

          7                 MR. COLGAN:  Having said that, with

          8  respect to any legislative requirement for the City

          9  of New York, and I do not believe that one is

         10  written into 185- A, I do not believe in

         11  consideration of the legal construct in the New York

         12  City Charter, that this language applies to us.

         13                 If there were legislation where it

         14  did apply to us, the Department has a organization

         15  with its attorneys and its operational folks, would

         16  have to study that, evaluate it, and make a

         17  determination.

         18                 So, I am not the competent authority

         19  in the Police Department to answer that particular

         20  question.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, but you

         22  yourself, in the course of your normal duties, you

         23  are a person to whom you would delegate this would

         24  undertake to answer community questions, and keep

         25  the community informed as to determinations,
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          2  obviously.

          3                 MR. COLGAN:  Of course, absolutely.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, and if

          5  a determination was made that, again hypothetically

          6  on any given street now, that for security reasons

          7  you need to keep a street closed, would it all

          8  undermine the operation if Department of

          9  Transportation or other officials met with the

         10  community to consider how the other surrounding open

         11  streets can be adjusted, or how additional parking

         12  outside of the closed area can be provided in order

         13  to minimize the impact of small businesses?

         14                 MR. COLGAN:  I do not think it

         15  appropriate for me to comment on what would

         16  undermine DOT's capacities.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  No, no, I am

         18  asking you if it would undermine police operations

         19  if they considered issues of that sort.

         20                 MR. COLGAN:  I do not know.  It would

         21  depend upon each individual incident on a case by

         22  case basis.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Would in

         24  inherently then, I mean, if in the case of Park Row

         25  there was a proposal to, in the vicinity open a, I
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          2  am talking hypothetically, an additional municipal

          3  parking lot, outside of the closed area, in order to

          4  encourage business to come, park, and then walk to

          5  stores where they were allowed to walk, and I am

          6  asking would a discussion between the community and

          7  DOT, to see if it were feasible to have some kind of

          8  additional parking in the vicinity, would that

          9  undermine --

         10                 MR. COLGAN:  I do not think it is

         11  appropriate for me to speculate on hypothetical

         12  cases.  I do not think that would be appropriate,

         13  and I do not think it serves anything.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well, we do

         15  not have to make it hypothetical, I mean, let us say

         16  there was, obviously we are going to hear testimony

         17  that small businesses were hurt because of the

         18  closure of Park Row.

         19                 Maybe one idea to make up for the

         20  loss of business, to encourage people to come in the

         21  vicinity, would be to locate an additional reduced

         22  rate, or municipal parking facility outside of the

         23  closed area, not within any closed off area but

         24  outside of the security perimeter, so people can

         25  come park their cars and then walk to patronize
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          2  businesses in areas where they were allowed to walk.

          3

          4                 Would that in any way undermine your

          5  security operation?

          6                 MR. COLGAN:  I do not believe it

          7  would.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, would

          9  it in any way undermine your security operation,

         10  whether it be on Wall Street,

         11  or Park Row, or elsewhere where there was a street

         12  closure if the local civic business resident

         13  associations met with DDC or the Department or

         14  anyone else, again, to discuss ways in which the

         15  closure, the closed barricades, or closure signs

         16  could be made more aesthetic and more welcoming to

         17  and more pleasing to people who live on the streets,

         18  or come to patronize open businesses on the streets?

         19

         20                 Is there, I think we have done that,

         21  in fact but is there any reason why we can not--.

         22                 MR. COLGAN:  Yes, we have but those

         23  issues are within the province, I think, of the

         24  Department of Transportation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So, you have
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          2  no objections to those taking place?

          3                 MR. COLGAN:  I did not say that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  But, I am

          5  asking you.

          6                 MR. COLGAN:  I do not know whether I

          7  do or not, until something substantial is put before

          8  me.

          9                 What I would want as an executive in

         10  the New York City Police Department is to have the

         11  agency with the expertise in those matters to

         12  interpret the implications accruing thereto, to

         13  those measures, and then ask us for our response.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Sure.

         15                 MR. COLGAN:  Which would be along the

         16  lines of analysis by our Traffic Control Division.

         17  We would look at our threat vectors in the area, and

         18  we would make operational recommendations after a

         19  discussion of the implications as understood by DOT,

         20  and articulated to us by competent authority in DOT.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, so you

         22  would want input from the standpoint not of design

         23  or aesthetics, but from the standpoint of

         24  operational security and subject to that input, you

         25  have no problems with DOT or DDC having those
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          2  discussions with the community and then soliciting

          3  your input to make sure there is no operational --

          4                 MR. COLGAN:  I believe that that

          5  process is currently ongoing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, so

          7  obviously you have no problems with that.

          8                 MR. COLGAN:  I believe that that

          9  process is currently ongoing, yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, so the

         11  answer is yes, and then, I guess my last question on

         12  this vein, is there any reason why consistent with

         13  operational security you and the Department, or the

         14  appropriate officer could not sit down and meet with

         15  the Director of Emergency Services for the local

         16  hospital to discuss, and with DOT maybe jointly, to

         17  discuss ways of assuring consistent with security,

         18  ambulance access to residents in or near the secure

         19  area, either and I am just going to present two

         20  hypotheticals, either by opening up additional

         21  routes outside of the secured area, or additional

         22  emergency lanes, or by stationing a regular pre-

         23  cleared ambulance within the security perimeter, so

         24  the individuals are checked but the ambulance is

         25  pre- cleared, and does not have to go through the

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  normal circumvented route, or if through some other

          3  means.

          4                 But, is there anything inconsistent

          5  with operations that would prevent you from having

          6  that discussion to explore ways of assuring access

          7  with the ambulance providers?

          8                 MR. COLGAN:  Well, let me say first,

          9  Sir, that although I have heard, I have never seen

         10  anything in writing from any member of the

         11  community, from any local EMS Director, from any

         12  local hospital.  I have heard, third- hand, fourth-

         13  hand, that ambulances have had difficulty getting

         14  through our checkpoints.

         15                 I know of no substantiated case in

         16  which that, in fact, happened.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well, let me

         18  ask you this?

         19                 MR. COLGAN:  And, certainly, we are

         20  not disagreeable to any protocol which will enhance

         21  the safety of those members, with respect to getting

         22  medical attention in that inner or outer perimeter.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So, if

         24  requested, you would be willing to sit down just to

         25  explore the possibilities of such protocols?
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          2                 MR. COLGAN:  We would do it as we

          3  routinely do with the input of our Headquarters

          4  Security Unit.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Sure.

          6                 MR. COLGAN:  Our Chief of Patrols

          7  Office, and our Counterterrorism Division Threat

          8  Reduction Infrastructure Protection Person.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Absolutely.

         10  Well then, I am going to turn the few questions

         11  remaining I have, and I promise it will be`few',

         12  over to the Deputy Commissioner from DOT because it

         13  sounds to me, based on my questioning, and again,

         14  subject to any language to which I solicit from the

         15  Police Department that the Department should have no

         16  problems with the type of legislation that we are

         17  proposing because all the things which you said are

         18  not a problem, are the very things we are asking the

         19  legislation to do.            And, again, if there

         20  is any language that obscures that, I promise to

         21  work with you and the Department to clarify and make

         22  it clear that this language is not intended to do

         23  otherwise or to undermine necessary security

         24  measures, and I will follow up with you.

         25                 MR. COLGAN:  Sir, if I may, I will
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          2  restate the Department's position as articulately as

          3  I can.

          4                 That we do not believe that the

          5  language in 185- A applies to the Police Department.

          6    If it is believed that it does, language should

          7  indicate that it does not impede the New York City

          8  Police Department from temporarily closing streets,

          9  partially or wholly, in order to carry out our

         10  public security mandate.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And, that is

         12  exactly the intent with the additions, that if you

         13  determine that the street needs to remain closed for

         14  your, based on your assessments, that all these

         15  things, and similar things that I just asked you

         16  about, which you said you have no problems doing,

         17  should and would be done, so, I do not see any

         18  security or objection to the bill that we are

         19  proposing.

         20                 So, I would like to turn my

         21  questioning over to Deputy Commissioner, and I just

         22  want to ask you, just refer to the part of your

         23  testimony where you made the financial analysis of

         24  $700,000 and $7 million.

         25                 Did you undertake any type of
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          2  analysis as to whether or not there is a loss to the

          3  City from reduced income as a result of businesses

          4  which might have to close, or in the event of street

          5  closures generally, or any kind of financial

          6  analysis as to the cost to the City of potential law

          7  suits that might ensue as a result, if there were

          8  any, ambulance or other delays, or people having

          9  problems because of difficult routes which they have

         10  to take to get around?

         11                 Did you, in other words, undertake

         12  the cost to the City, undertaking analysis to assess

         13  the cost to the City of an unmitigated street

         14  closure?

         15                 MR. COLGAN:  No, we did not.  These

         16  numbers are estimates based only on cost that the

         17  Department would, or other municipal agencies would

         18  incur.  Similarly, there is no number attached to

         19  the impact on a project that might, theoretically,

         20  start and then stop again, before it could restart

         21  while this analysis is going on.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well, I do

         23  not understand why anything in this bill would cause

         24  that to happen, but we could discuss that later.

         25                 I just want to finish the issue of,
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          2  and certainly the bill is designed to prevent that

          3  from happening, and again, if you have any language

          4  suggestions, we welcome that.

          5                 But, just to again, I want to get to

          6  the witnesses, I guess the one part of your analysis

          7  which I do not understand, is you testified earlier

          8  in the testimony that you already do most of what we

          9  are asking you to do anyway, and we hear Deputy

         10  Chief saying and referring to the number of

         11  meetings, he routinely goes to, and I know he does,

         12  and I by the way, appreciate his accessibility, and

         13  I am certainly very well aware of all the Community

         14  Board meetings to which you send any number of DOT

         15  personnel, and then you say you come back and you

         16  analyze and you put in place necessary ameliorative

         17  measures.  So you know what? It seems to me that

         18  this bill would actually save the City money because

         19  by having a more formalized process, with a more

         20  definitive beginning and end, you would probably

         21  have a greater economy of meetings and reviews,

         22  rather than the Helter-Skelter system that you just

         23  testified you all currently undertake.

         24                 So, I think, Mr. Chair, that this

         25  bill actually, if we did the proper analysis, I
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          2  think this bill would wind up saving the City money

          3  based on the testimony of the Deputy Commissioner,

          4  as to what you already do.

          5                 What the bill would also do is, I

          6  think it would assure the community that we would

          7  have this analysis done in a more methodical,

          8  definitive time- certain way with results clearly

          9  communicated to the community, so, if we work

         10  together on a bill along these lines, we will save

         11  you money and we will assure community input and we

         12  will get the job done.

         13                 How is that?

         14                 MR. COLGAN:  We are always happy to

         15  save money.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  That is what

         17  I thought you would say.

         18                 Just want to point out, Mr. Chair, I

         19  would like to request, if you could, the listing of

         20  the 300 streets over the past year, or whatever

         21  period of time you did this estimate, I presume you

         22  have it on a database of some place, but apparently

         23  the street closure issue may be of greater interest

         24  to my colleagues because of 300, obviously, since I

         25  know only of two in my district, it clearly
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          2  transcends Council District 1, and has a citywide

          3  impact, so, I think it would be helpful if you could

          4  give us that list.

          5                 MR. COLGAN:  Again, that is an

          6  estimated number.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Whatever it

          8  is, but could you provide us with a list of full,

          9  entire street closures over the past year or so, for

         10  more than 45 days?

         11                 MR. COLGAN:  Happy to do that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  All right, I

         13  do have so many more questions, Mr. Chair, but I

         14  think it is more important that we hear from the

         15  community who is affected by this, and I had asked

         16  many of my questions at the previous hearing.

         17                 In any event, I just look forward to

         18  sitting down and working with the Administration to

         19  get the job done.  Part of legislation is to assure

         20  that a procedure that is needed does not rely on

         21  particular Administrations or officials in office at

         22  any time, but becomes a standard part of practice,

         23  and if we are in agreement that this should be a

         24  part of a review practice, we should figure out a

         25  way to do what other cities have done and get a
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          2  workable, with security needs in mind, process.

          3  But, I will look forward to continuing the

          4  discussion.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, I do

          7  just have some follow up questions for the Deputy

          8  Chief.

          9                 You continue to testify that Park Row

         10  is closed to satisfy security needs.

         11                 MR. COLGAN:  Yes, Sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, in your view,

         13  the only way to satisfy those security needs is to

         14  continue the closure of Park Row, and the

         15  surrounding streets where they currently are closed?

         16                 MR. COLGAN:  Yes, Sir, that is

         17  correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, there is no

         19  way to reduce the number of streets, or the length

         20  of the streets that are closed?

         21                 MR. COLGAN:  We do not believe so,

         22  Sir.

         23                 We believe that those closures are

         24  consistent with the current threat, and we have,

         25  unfortunately, demonstration of the correctitude of
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          2  that posture around the globe routinely.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, the Department

          4  has also closed every other street in the City of

          5  New York, near a potential target, where such

          6  closure would also contribute to the security of

          7  that building?

          8                 MR. COLGAN:  We have closed those

          9  streets where we felt there was no viable

         10  alternative measured against the threat, the

         11  vulnerabilities that we have, and our capacity to

         12  mitigate them.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And the capacity to

         14  what?

         15                 MR. COLGAN:  To mitigate those

         16  threats, Sir, to manage the risks.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Are there any other

         18  things, so there is nothing that can be done to

         19  mitigate those risks, apart from closing those

         20  streets?

         21                 MR. COLGAN:  In my opinion, not now.

         22  We routinely look at technologies that would allow

         23  us to do that, and I would suggest to you that if

         24  you look at those technologies at high- value

         25  targets around the country, they are those
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          2  technologies that we are using.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I am not asking you

          4  to identify any targets elsewhere in the City.

          5                 I can think of a number of targets

          6  throughout the City, especially in Manhattan, where

          7  the streets are completely open and that the

          8  building sits, maybe a dozen or so feet away from

          9  the street that has open access to all vehicles.

         10  And yet, those streets remain open.

         11                 In those cases, I think you are

         12  implying, but I want to be absolutely certain about

         13  it, that in those cases those streets were not as

         14  wide open or as easily accessible as Park Row is, is

         15  that the reason why those streets continue to remain

         16  open?

         17                 MR. COLGAN:  I do not know which

         18  targets you are speaking of, Chairman Liu.

         19                 Having said that though --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That is because we

         21  cannot talk about any targets.

         22                 MR. COLGAN:  Well, I am aware of a

         23  number of places in New York City where if one were

         24  not versed in the subject matter, one might suggest,

         25  it would seem to me we should do this, why don't we
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          2  do it?  Because there are those places in Manhattan,

          3  say on Fifth Avenue, for instance, where there is no

          4  way that traffic can stand still for any amount of

          5  time.

          6                 It is very difficult to bring a Ryder

          7  truck down Fifth Avenue, and place it within 25 feet

          8  of the building skin of a high- value target and

          9  detonate that because there are many people, from

         10  corporate security officers, to uniformed police

         11  officers, to traffic agents who are going to move

         12  that traffic.

         13                 When we get down into the narrow

         14  canyons of Lower Manhattan, and we look at the rich

         15  target area, the Federal Buildings, the building we

         16  are sitting in now, there are of course vehicle

         17  barriers to protect this facility because it is a

         18  high value target.  We employ those technologies

         19  that we think provide those people within the

         20  vicinity of the target, and in the target, that

         21  level of protection that we can give them.  It is

         22  not the best but it is all that the technology will

         23  provide.

         24                 If we open the streets, case in

         25  point, Park Row and the others, where we have closed
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          2  them around Police Headquarters, I submit to you,

          3  Sir, that we invite a devastating attack, the

          4  consequences of which will be catastrophic to the

          5  community that would seek to have those streets

          6  open.

          7                 In my opinion, Sir, and I submit, it

          8  is my humble, personal opinion, and it is that of

          9  our Bureau, that those streets are closed because we

         10  have no other way to protect the target at this

         11  point in time from the threat that we believe is the

         12  active threat; a high- impact explosive, in an

         13  improvised explosive device, borne by a vehicle.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Currently, the

         15  streets that are closed do serve some purpose,

         16  although they cannot carry through traffic, they are

         17  serving a purpose that I presume is important to the

         18  Police Department, does it serve a purpose other

         19  than simply keeping Police Plaza and the Federal

         20  Correction Facility safe from a potential car bomb?

         21                 MR. COLGAN:  Yes, Sir, it keeps the

         22  community that lives in the vicinity of those

         23  facilities free from that attack as well.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, in the

         25  meantime, how are those streets being used?  What is
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          2  being used, how is the space that occupies those

          3  streets being currently used?

          4                 MR. COLGAN:  I am not certain I

          5  understand the question.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, one of the

          7  major gripes in the community is that it seems, and

          8  I do not know how true this is or not, I am sure we

          9  will hear about this in testimony from the public,

         10  that it is also become a huge parking lot.

         11                 MR. COLGAN:  Well, I can tell you

         12  that the Commanding Officer of the Headquarters

         13  Security Section vigorously enforces the parking

         14  ordinances.

         15                 I would suggest also that there is a

         16  vehicular load accruing to the Metropolitan

         17  Correctional Center, and the Federal Courthouse, the

         18  new one which was recently constructed at 500 Pearl

         19  that has a vehicle load, that is impacted by the

         20  street closures as well.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, the criticism

         22  from the public that the streets remain closed, in

         23  part to provide parking for law enforcement

         24  officers, that is completely unfounded?

         25                 MR. COLGAN:  That is patently
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          2  unfounded, that is not the case.  We do not create

          3  parking areas for our convenience.

          4                 We close those streets for a

          5  legitimate, public security imperative, and we argue

          6  that they should remain closed for that reason.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Council Member

          8  Gerson has follow ups.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Just very

         10  quickly, Deputy Chief.  Isn't it the case that the

         11  Police Department through the Commissioner, through

         12  Commissioner Kelly, at one point did agree to

         13  request an Inter- Agency Task Force with DOT, to

         14  undertake the type of review and mitigation

         15  planning, which this very bill requests be done for

         16  Park Row?  Wasn't that part of what we were going to

         17  do at one point?

         18                 MR. COLGAN:  I do not know, Sir.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  All right,

         20  well, let me tell you there was a meeting, which I

         21  attended, Assembly Speaker Sheldon Silver attended,

         22  Senator Martin Connor attended, Commissioner

         23  Weinshall attended, and Commissioner Kelly attended

         24  where that commitment was, in fact, made for a

         25  variety of reasons.
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          2                 It was never put in place, and I

          3  guess since you do not know if the commitment was

          4  made, then you do not know why it was never put in

          5  place.

          6                 MR. COLGAN:  I am not familiar with

          7  the subject matter at all.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  All right,

          9  well, I would like the Department to follow up by

         10  letting us know why that process was never actually

         11  carried out, and if it still can be carried out, and

         12  I would make the same request of DOT, since your

         13  Department was present at the very same meeting but

         14  I would just note that if at the time it was good

         15  enough to take place, all we are seeking in this

         16  bill is that process to which we had thought the

         17  Department's had made an agreement.

         18                 I believe one of the reasons you will

         19  hear that it was not carried out was because of a

         20  change in the legal situation involving law suits,

         21  and whether or not that has validity or not as a

         22  reason, it is a different issue, but the underlying

         23  point is there was recognition, I believe, at that

         24  level for the validity of the very type of process

         25  that we are calling for here.
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          2                 So, I would like to know if there is

          3  any reason other than the law suits why that process

          4  was never put in place. Deputy Commissioner, has the

          5  DOT or the Department ever had any conversations, or

          6  have any of you ever had any conversations reached

          7  out to your own initiative, the local hospital, to

          8  see if there were any problems with ambulance

          9  response time or any needs to develop any special

         10  procedures?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I know we have

         12  done a lot of outreach in the neighborhood, I am not

         13  sure if that particular conversation had happened

         14  but I will find out.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Deputy Chief,

         16  do you know of any such conversations?

         17                 MR. COLGAN:  I know that we have made

         18  certain, wherever we have closed a street, that

         19  emergency medical service and emergency vehicles can

         20  get through, and that we have protocols in place to

         21  make sure that emergency services are provided

         22  without disruption to the community.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you,

         24  but I guess I am asking you if you or anyone that

         25  you know have had a direct conversation--.
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          2                 MR. COLGAN:  I did not personally do

          3  that, Sir. Nor, did I direct anyone under me to do

          4  that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, all

          6  right, thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

          8  much, Council Member Gerson.

          9                 One last question on my part for

         10  Deputy Chief. Recently, a nearby, a park in the

         11  vicinity of Park Row was reopened, that was reopened

         12  over the objections of the Administration because it

         13  was ordered by a court.

         14                 Does that have any relation to the

         15  continued closure of Park Row?   Are there any

         16  similar issues in your opinion?

         17                 MR. COLGAN:  I believe they are two

         18  separate issues but I would ask Sergeant Gleeson to

         19  speak to that.

         20                 MR. GLEESON:  You are referring to

         21  the Chatham Green litigation, Mr. Chair, which is to

         22  my best understanding is still ongoing at this

         23  point.

         24                 Part of that litigation concerned the

         25  barrier closures, the other part concerned the park,
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          2  which you are referring to is James Madison Plaza.

          3  The City in that litigation defended the petitioners

          4  request to open that park on the grounds that that

          5  closure was only temporary, and it has opened.  We

          6  have complied with that order, as well as having

          7  complied with the other orders issued by the court

          8  in that case.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, thank

         10  you gentlemen for joining us this afternoon.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me ask our next

         13  panel to come up to the witness table.

         14                 We have Danny Chen, Paul Lee, Jeanie

         15  Chin, and Julie Menin.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Excuse me,

         17  Mr. Chair.  While these witnesses take their seat,

         18  if there is still anyone from the Administration,

         19  from DOT, or the Police, I would invite them to

         20  remain, or maybe Mr. Manning could do so.  I would

         21  invite them to remain to hear these witnesses so

         22  they can hear directly from the community.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, why

         25  don't we proceed. I do need to ask everybody to hold
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          2  their comments to three minutes, and if we have any

          3  questions, there will be more opportunity to

          4  comment.

          5                 We will start with Danny, Danny Chen.

          6                 Immediately after this panel

          7  testifies, we will call up the following people,

          8  Susan Stetzer, David Goldschmidt, and Joseph Amico

          9  (sic).

         10                 Mr. Chen.

         11                 MR. CHEN:  I had written testimony

         12  but hearing the Deputy Chief's comments, I am too

         13  incensed to even read my statement.

         14                 I have to point out certain things.

         15  The FDR Drive exit off the Brooklyn Bridge is open.

         16  It is within 50 to 100 feet of Police Headquarters,

         17  far less than the barriers placed on Park Row of

         18  about 400 and 500 feet.  The area has been turned

         19  into a parking lot, and the issue, listening to the

         20  Deputy Chief, you sense that we have an agency that

         21  is claiming absolute power in New York City, and we

         22  need laws to balance that.  That is the case that we

         23  have been experiencing.

         24                 For two and a half years, we have

         25  been subject to the whims of their decisions, and
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          2  their policies are self- serving. Now, whether they

          3  serve to protect the citizens or themselves, someone

          4  else has to judge besides them.

          5                 That barrier that they place on Park

          6  Row, they claim to be protecting me, it is

          7  underneath my window.  The attack point is the

          8  barrier, if a bomb carrying a thousand pounds of C4,

          9  whatever else that they claim might attack Police

         10  Headquarters, might go off at that barrier, protect

         11  us.

         12                 That is all I have to say.  Thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         15                 Mr. Lee.

         16                 MR. LEE:  Hi, I am first going to

         17  read the testimony from Anna Goldstein, a resident

         18  of Chatham Towers.  She was unable to stay, and I

         19  think I can do hers and mine in under the three

         20  minute time limit.

         21                 This is from Anna Goldstein.

         22                 I am a resident of Chatham Towers.  I

         23  can see that the closing of Park Row has had a major

         24  impact on the southern portion of Chinatown and its

         25  residents and businesses.
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          2                 The police have taken over the street

          3  to use as their parking lot.  As a result, traffic

          4  has been diverted to St. James Place and Worth

          5  Streets.  The traffic is extremely heavy, and at

          6  times, it has taken me more than a half hour to

          7  drive the two blocks from East Broadway and Bowery,

          8  to Worth and Mulberry Streets.

          9                 There are a number of buses

         10  travelling west on Worth Street, making traffic

         11  worse, yet to reroute the buses would mean no

         12  service for the area.  Reopening Park Row and

         13  restoring the original bus stops that existed prior

         14  to 9/11 would be an excellent remedy.

         15                 It is extremely dangerous to drive

         16  from Worth Street north because of the ongoing

         17  traffic heading from St. James onto Worth Street.

         18  Several traffic officers are necessary to direct

         19  traffic most of the day to prevent accidents at the

         20  intersections and move traffic along.

         21                 The result is that pedestrians, which

         22  I am also, risk their lives crossing the street at

         23  Chatham Square because the traffic is so heavy and

         24  drivers are either directed to keep moving or are

         25  frustrated and keep driving.
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          2                 Traffic in the area has been

          3  difficult to negotiate, and as a result, my family

          4  and friends prefer to get together outside of

          5  Chinatown.

          6                 Public parking has been taken away as

          7  cars displaying police permits park on the closed

          8  Park Row, all around Columbus Park, and Mulberry and

          9  Mott Streets.  It has affected us who live in the

         10  community as well as those who visit us.  At times,

         11  we have cars displaying police permits parked on our

         12  sidewalks.

         13                 We have seen a major Chinese

         14  supermarkets close because of lack of business due

         15  to its location at the south of Mott Street.  It

         16  used to be packed with customers.

         17                 Please pass the Park Row bill, and

         18  return the street to the public and the community.

         19                 Anna Goldstein.

         20                 For my own statement, let me just, I

         21  think I will be very brief.

         22                 I am here today to support the

         23  passage of this legislation, and I hope to enlighten

         24  you about the consequences to your communities

         25  outside of Chinatown if you do not pass this
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          2  legislation.

          3                 Chinatown, the Lower East Side, and

          4  Little Italy have all suffered the consequences of

          5  the unilateral closing of Park Row.  Streets other

          6  than Park Row have been closed, parks have been

          7  taken as parking facilities, causing severe economic

          8  damage to the community and horribly damaging the

          9  quality of life of our senior citizens and

         10  handicapped neighbors.

         11                 While some of these areas have been

         12  held from a period of under three years to decades,

         13  they have all been labeled temporary.

         14                 I re- iterate that I lost my family's

         15  113 year old business due to the inability to

         16  conduct normal business because of street closings.

         17                 Studies done by the DOT, and the LMDC

         18  have come to the conclusion that the community was

         19  badly damaged economically. It will happen in a

         20  neighborhood near you, elsewhere in the City, if law

         21  enforcement appears in your area.  For example, I

         22  urge the community in Downtown Brooklyn, which will

         23  have or may have now the Office of Emergency

         24  Management in their backyard, to be vigilant for the

         25  reasons that we are experiencing.
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          2                 Near Chinatown, not only have we

          3  given up streets and parking to the point where it

          4  is choking the life out of the business community,

          5  but agencies are competing to get more spaces from

          6  the streets.  The Court officers and Corrections

          7  officers are demanding more spaces commensurate to

          8  what the number of spaces the NYPD has.

          9                 DOT, the Health Department and

         10  Federal Agencies all want more spaces on the city

         11  streets.  They make these demands without regard to

         12  the disastrous effects that this has on the

         13  neighboring communities.

         14                 We want security more than anyone

         15  because the attacks will come in our area, in the

         16  event of a future attack. And, if I can just say as

         17  Danny mentioned, the perimeter that the One Police

         18  Plaza has created has put them all under our own

         19  windows.  They are close enough to blow up my

         20  apartment on Mott Street.

         21                 We cannot tolerate a situation where

         22  the cure is more toxic than the disease.  Please

         23  pass this bill and make it retroactive to 9/11.

         24                 Thank you, and in my submitted

         25  documents, I have put in the Court Ruling from Judge
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          2  Walter Tolub on the Park Row situation.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          5                 Ms. Chin.

          6                 MS. CHIN:  I fully support the

          7  proposed proposition, and I am most grateful to

          8  Transportation Committee members of the City Council

          9  for the opportunity to share our experiences as

         10  residents of Park Row.

         11                 Those of us who have tried to re-

         12  open Park Row for the past two and a half years have

         13  literally spent thousands of hours in forum after

         14  forum organizing the community against what one

         15  resident called a reign of anti- terror by the NYPD.

         16

         17                 Our community has been exhausted by

         18  attending community and coalition meetings, town

         19  hall meetings, shareholder meetings, rallies,

         20  lawsuit meetings, LMDC meetings, community board and

         21  community board committee meetings, numerous

         22  courthouse hearings, City Council hearings, press

         23  conferences, meetings with Asian- American

         24  organizations, meetings with our elected

         25  representatives, and meetings interviewing lawyers,
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          2  as well as traffic and environmental experts.

          3                 We have been exhausted by writing

          4  letters, documents, e- mails, flyers, press releases

          5  and by plastering posters throughout our community.

          6  We are exhausted by thousands of phone calls we have

          7  made.  A core group of us have sacrificed not only

          8  our time, but more painfully our families while we

          9  worked 24/7 on this issue, a few have even

         10  sacrificed their health, their livelihoods, and

         11  their businesses, putting their lives on hold even

         12  now.

         13                 Why?  While many downtown

         14  neighborhoods battled government bureaucracies after

         15  9/11, ours is a chilling example of how the NYPD and

         16  counter-terrorism Bureau occupied and barricaded our

         17  neighborhood closing of an area to pedestrians and

         18  vehicles that was larger than the World Trade Center

         19  site.  This included taking over our parks and

         20  turning the main north/south artery as well as

         21  secondary roads into giant parking lots for the

         22  NYPD, and other City employees.  They have parked

         23  their vehicles in front of fire hydrants, bus stops,

         24  curb cuts for the disabled and fire lanes,

         25  compromising our health, our safety and hammering
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          2  our local businesses and economy.  They rerouted

          3  five MTA bus routes without notification so that

          4  local residents were left to verbally tell waiting

          5  bus riders that "the bus ain't coming", even three

          6  months after this relocation.

          7                 The NYPD restricted our rights,

          8  invaded our privacy, ignored our legitimate

          9  concerns, stonewalled us and treated us like the

         10  enemy for more than two and a half years, and

         11  continue to do so.

         12                 Who could we complain to when the

         13  NYPD and Mayor Bloomberg's Administration turned a

         14  deaf ear to us?

         15                 We were forced to file a time

         16  consuming and expensive lawsuit to learn how to

         17  access the entrance to our homes and to our handicap

         18  and delivery ramps on Park Row.

         19                 We also filed to prevent the NYPD

         20  from parking in our parks and using them and our

         21  neighborhood as their own private parking lots.  We

         22  are citizens who were forced to fund an equally

         23  expensive traffic study to refute the City's

         24  ridiculous environmental assessment study stating

         25  that what they did to our community had no impact.
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          2  Who would go to any town in the United States.

          3  Barricade the main street, and prepare an elaborate

          4  study to say that there is no impact on the

          5  community and local economy?

          6                 There is no need to look further than

          7  two blocks down from NYPD Headquarters to see a

          8  shuttered supermarket and two gift shops, including

          9  one over 100 years old, and another one 30 years old

         10  in the neighborhood that has since been chopped up

         11  into a mini- mall.  Yet this location, two blocks

         12  from NYPD Headquarters is not even included in the

         13  City's obscene environmental assessment study.

         14                 I wish to state on the public record

         15  that despite what Janet Siegel, the City's Attorney,

         16  has asserted in open court and in the media that

         17   "The Police Department is continuing to work with

         18  the community to see that all concerns are

         19  addressed," this is blatantly false.  As a plaintiff

         20  on the Park Row lawsuit, I have stated in front of

         21  meetings with the NYPD, city attorneys and in front

         22  of representatives of Assemblyman Sheldon Silver,

         23  Congresswoman Velazguez, Congressman Connor, Borough

         24  President Fields, and Congressman (sic) Alan Gerson

         25  that despite repeated requests by myself and my co-
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          2  operative president to be included in any

          3  discussions with the NYPD on how to access our

          4  entrances on Park Row, and how to deal with our

          5  concerns.

          6                 The NYPD has never called us.  I

          7  repeat, the NYPD has still never called us nor have

          8  they called any one that we know of in the Asian-

          9  American community about how to deal with the Park

         10  Row issues.

         11                 Despite our countless attempts to

         12  communicate with the City, the stonewalled us using

         13  the shield of "security".

         14                 Frightening while we have been forced

         15  to use the limited resources in our community to

         16  fight the NYPD, they on the other hand have enjoyed

         17  the unlimited resources of our taxpayer dollars to

         18  use against us both legally and through their easy

         19  access to expensive traffic engineers, official

         20  records, documents and traffic studies.

         21                 The NYPD repeatedly stalled us in

         22  court when they were forced to return the part to

         23  our community until the judge told them they would

         24  be held in contempt if they did not return the park

         25  by April 15.  The NYPD can potentially continue to
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          2  tie us up for years through court appeals even if we

          3  file our traffic study and win.

          4                 And, please note in the public

          5  record, that while the NYPD was devouring our

          6  streets, they told us during one lawsuit meeting in

          7  front of a dozen ear witnesses, that was Inspector

          8  Logan who told me this, he said that the Police

          9  Union Contract entitles officers to park near their

         10  precinct.  For the record, this is a myth, there is

         11  no such stipulation in the Policy Union Contract.  I

         12  want to include in the public record that despite

         13  NYPD assertions the emergency vehicles allowed to

         14  access the checkpoint barriers on Park Row, this is

         15  another myth.  Common sense and the historical

         16  record of communications between the fire, police,

         17  and other emergency services tell us that by the

         18  time emergency vehicles communicated with the Park

         19  Row checkpoint, and navigated security procedures,

         20  the emergency would be over.  How do I know this?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Ms. Chin, I have to

         22  ask you to wrap up soon.

         23                 MS. CHIN:  Okay.  Let me just go to

         24  the last paragraph, sorry.

         25                 The Park Row Occupation provides a
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          2  chilling model of how the police should not treat a

          3  community after a terrorist act.             We

          4  implore City Council members to protect your

          5  constituents, particularly all those who live near

          6  any government office buildings, political

          7  embassies, high profile tourist landmarks or police

          8  precincts.

          9                 Please support the bill, a public

         10  review process whereby the citizens of this City

         11  have a reasonable means and a reasonable time to

         12  communicate with their government about their

         13  safety, their rights, and their concerns after a

         14  street closure. May no other community in this City

         15  be placed under siege, under the shield of

         16   "security", as the Park Row people.

         17                 Our heartfelt thanks to all those who

         18  have supported us.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         20  much, Ms. Chin.

         21                 Ms. Menin.

         22                 MS. MENIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         23                 Good afternoon, I am Julie Menin,

         24  President and Founder of Wall Street Rising.

         25                 I am here to testify in favor
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          2  Proposed Intro. Number 185, which would create a

          3  review process in the event of a long- term closure

          4  of a public street.

          5                 I want to thank Council Member Alan

          6  Gerson for his very important leadership on this

          7  issue, and for giving me the opportunity to testify

          8  today.

          9                 The offices of Wall Street Rising and

         10  our Downtown Information Center are located in a

         11  building that is across the street from the New York

         12  Stock Exchange.  We are, therefore, very familiar

         13  with the serious deleterious impacts that can result

         14  from street closures.

         15                 Since September 11, 2001, the streets

         16  around the New York Stock Exchange have been

         17  restricted to vehicular traffic, and the impacts to

         18  local businesses have been severe.  Seven small

         19  businesses have closed in the last year within three

         20  blocks of the Downtown Information Center, with many

         21  others reporting that their sales remain sharply

         22  down.  Every small business owner seems to agree

         23  that these difficulties are largely attributed to

         24  the street closings.

         25                 Wall Street Rising would welcome the
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          2  provision of this bill calling for commissioners

          3  proposing street closings to generate a finding that

          4  would reflect consideration of the economic impact

          5  of street closings on area businesses and mitigating

          6  measures.

          7                 If the impacts of street closings are

          8  better understood in advance, steps can be taken to

          9  offset them.  For example, the location of taxi

         10  stands at key intersections just outside of the area

         11  restricted to traffic can provide people with a

         12  reliable way to travel to and from businesses in the

         13  restricted area.

         14                 Wall Street Rising has advocated taxi

         15  stands in the Financial District, and we believe

         16  that they would benefit area stores and restaurants.

         17                 There are other effective ways to

         18  counter the impact of street closings.  Thoughtful

         19  wayfinding systems employing informative and useful

         20  signage can draw people into retail stores and

         21  restaurants in restricted areas.  Special marketing

         22  initiatives can be undertaken to encourage people to

         23  visit these businesses.

         24                 In addition to the severe impacts

         25  that they have on businesses, street closings can
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          2  greatly inconvenience residents.             In the

          3  case of senior citizens, and people with

          4  disabilities, the closings can make it extremely

          5  difficult or even impossible to access certain

          6  locations.  In fact, getting to and from a place of

          7  residence can become a challenge.

          8                 For at least the next ten years,

          9  there will be numerous major redevelopment projects

         10  throughout Lower Manhattan. While we look forward to

         11  the benefits that many of these projects will bring

         12  to our area, they will cause undo hardships for our

         13  businesses and residents.

         14                 It is imperative that steps be taken

         15  to help our businesses survive this construction

         16  period so that they can share in the future of a

         17  revitalized and redeveloped Lower Manhattan.

         18                 We strongly support this bill, which

         19  would help ensure that the impacts of street

         20  closures are thought out in advance, and where

         21  possible, offset with mitigating measures.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         24                 Just a quick question for Danny Chen.

         25    You said that the FDR ramp, or the ramp off the
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          2  FRD is only 50 feet away?

          3                 MR. CHEN:  That is correct.  The exit

          4  from the FDR Drive, if you go over the Brooklyn

          5  Bridge or the FDR Drive, and then you take the exit

          6  that puts you onto St. James, there is a loop, and I

          7  can get out of my car, and almost touch Police

          8  Headquarters from that ramp.

          9                 I had an aerial shot, I did not bring

         10  it.  The distance contradictions between what Deputy

         11  Chief Colgan warns about, flies in the face of what

         12  they actually practice.

         13                 They talk about security, they

         14  practice parking. So, they may have the best of

         15  intentions, but they do not implement any of those

         16  security policies.  What is being done now, within

         17  the security zone, is that it is run like a parking

         18  lot.  If they are concerned about a vehicle- borne

         19  explosive, then why are they not checking cars going

         20  into the vehicles.  When the establish a checkpoint,

         21  the Delta Barrier that Colgan referred to, it is

         22  outside of the Federal inspection site for

         23  explosives, the inspection portion is inside the

         24  zone, so trucks get inside on a system of trust.

         25  They drive off to the side to get inspected, if you
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          2  are really protecting against explosives, you would

          3  put that barrier after a truck has been inspected.

          4                 So, all of this smacks of a huge

          5  parking lot, run by tax dollar money.  That is all

          6  we as residents see, is a parking lot run by

          7  taxpayer money.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Questions from

          9  Council Member Gerson.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  First of all,

         11  Mr. Chair, I want to, on the record, acknowledge and

         12  thank each of these four witnesses.

         13                 These people, these individuals have

         14  been leaders of their community in time of crisis,

         15  and have each made it possible for our community to

         16  get through an extraordinarily difficult situation,

         17  and their testimony should carry the weight of

         18  people who, both, have the ears and the minds and

         19  the concerns of the community, including security

         20  concerns at heart.  So, I want to thank each of you

         21  for that.

         22                 I would just like to ask Mr. Lee, Mr.

         23  Chen, and Ms. Chin, could you just describe the

         24  conversations or the meetings or the dialogues which

         25  that Chatham and Chinatown community has had with
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          2  the Department of Transportation, and the Police

          3  Department, as to the problems imposed on the

          4  community by the street closure? What type of forums

          5  have taken place over the past, almost, two years?

          6                 MR. CHEN:  Well, Deputy Chief Colgan

          7  referred to a meeting, a three- hour meeting, that

          8  happened in May of 2002, so two years have almost

          9  past since that meeting.  The Colgans sells fire and

         10  brimstone, he is trying to scare the community into

         11  compliance to their policies.  And, the tenor of his

         12  presentations are always one of arrogance, the NYPD

         13  does what it does, it will do what it does, and the

         14  legislative aside, the people aside, elected

         15  officials aside, and what we are looking for is the

         16  legislative to assert itself and create balance

         17  here.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So, is that

         19  the only such meeting?  The one that you mentioned?

         20                 MR. CHEN:  There was one smaller

         21  meeting in your office.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I am taking

         23  about open.

         24                 MR. CHEN:  The community meetings?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Yes.
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          2                 MR. CHEN:  Yes, that was the last

          3  community meeting in which the NYPD came and

          4  presented "take it or leave it."

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Were there

          6  any follow up meetings with the Department of

          7  Transportation to discuss ways of ameliorating or

          8  mitigating the problems, such as the congestion,

          9  which Ms. Goldsteins testimony referred to?

         10                 MS. CHIN:  If I must just say, there

         11  were several meetings during the lawsuit, and during

         12  those meetings--.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Other than

         14  the lawsuit.

         15                 MS. CHIN:  Other than the lawsuit,

         16  no.  There were no other meetings, and I have called

         17  Lieutenant Lopez, who was sitting here earlier to

         18  ask him about why he forced Chatham Towers to route

         19  their garbage around the corner, away from and up

         20  the stairs, whereas, we could have left if where it

         21  was for 30 years in front of our basement ramp, and

         22  we looked across the street and we saw that Chatham

         23  Green was allowed to park their garbage directly

         24  across the street, and we did not understand why

         25  they, since we took the initiative in filing the
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          2  lawsuit, we believe that those were actions taken

          3  against our building, and the LMDC was able to call

          4  the Mayor's office to bring our garbage back where

          5  it belonged, across the street from Chatham Greens.

          6  Well, a few weeks later, we found our garbage was

          7  then routed again, around the corner and we asked

          8  the LMDC again what happened, how come our garbage

          9  is back around the corner instead of where Chatham

         10  Greens garbage is, across the street, and we were

         11  told that, and I said to be honest with you, please

         12  find out from Mayor Bloomberg's office if Chatham

         13  Greens garbage is being screened for explosives

         14  because they are welcome to screen our garbage for

         15  explosives but they would be better screening for

         16  explosives behind their building which has the exit

         17  ramp 50 feet from their building, as opposed to

         18  where are garbage is, which is 400 feet from their

         19  premises.

         20                 So, these are the types of actions

         21  that we have been subjected to as a result of the

         22  lawsuit, and it is a chilling, scary thought, and

         23  there are many people that have come up to me and

         24  said they truly wish they could have attended today

         25  but they were really frightened to come and appear
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          2  in public before a Commissioner that might identify

          3  them, and where in the future, we are sandwiched in

          4  between Police Headquarters, one block away, and,

          5  two blocks away, or three blocks away we have the

          6  Fifth Precinct, so that is scary especially for many

          7  of the seniors in our buildings.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Let me just

          9  ask you, how long after the Park Row closure was the

         10  lawsuit filed?

         11                 MS. CHIN:  I am not really good on

         12  dates.

         13                 MR. CHEN:  Roughly April 2003 was

         14  when the lawsuit was filed, so that was a year and a

         15  half.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  A year and a

         17  half, and prior to that lawsuit during that

         18  intervening year and a half, there were no

         19  conversations with DOT?

         20                 MS. CHIN:  We tried, and tried, and

         21  tried.  There were no conversations.  We tried

         22  through your office, we tried through so many

         23  venues, through all our elected officials.  We tried

         24  to find back doors, front door, nobody wanted to

         25  talk to us because it was security, sorry.
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          2                 MR. CHEN:  It is quite interesting

          3  because before the lawsuit they cited security as

          4  not being able to talk to the community.

          5                 Then, after the lawsuit, they cited

          6  the lawsuit as the reason for not being able to talk

          7  to the community, so, community is left with no

          8  tools with which to speak to them, and clearly, they

          9  do not want to speak to us.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Mr. Lee, I am

         11  well aware that the Chinatown community has several

         12  business and civic associations representing the

         13  businesses of the Chatham and Chinatown community.

         14                 To your knowledge, have there been

         15  any meetings or conversations with any of the

         16  business, between any of the business organizations,

         17  and either DOT or the City's Economic Development

         18  Corporation, or for that matter, the Police as to

         19  the economic impact on small businesses, and what

         20  steps, if any, could be taken to prevent an economic

         21  impact on small business from the Park Row closure?

         22  Have you been to any such meetings?

         23                 MR. LEE:  Number one, I have not.

         24  Number two, the President of the CCBA, Yorkchin

         25  (phonetic), and the President of the Ling- Sing
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          2  Association (phonetic) were here earlier to support

          3  the passage of the bill.

          4                 There have been no meetings just to

          5  correlate to what Danny and Jeanie were saying.  I

          6  was unable to attend those meetings because the few

          7  meetings that we have had, the NYPD would not allow

          8  people outside of a certain setup that they had

          9  attend the meetings.  Meaning, they had to be either

         10  petitioners to the lawsuit or from Chatham Green or

         11  Chatham Towers.  So, they would not allow residents

         12  or businesses from the Chinatown area.

         13                 So, they constantly constrict the

         14  area to fit their own needs, and again, it is very

         15  disturbing that they are there to protect themselves

         16  and not protect the citizens.  That their perimeter

         17  pushes themselves, the possible explosions out into

         18  our area.  So, we are concerned about that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Mr. Chair,

         20  just for the record, I would note that the public

         21  meeting or forum to which the Deputy Chief and Mr.

         22  Danny Chen referred, where Deputy Chief Colgan

         23  attended, was a meeting which my office played a

         24  part in organizing, and in fact, that was more of a,

         25  was supposed to be more of an information
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          2  dissemination and not a true process or back and

          3  forth, which we had hoped would follow up to that

          4  meeting but you heard testimony never did.

          5                 But just Mr. Lee, the associations to

          6  which you referred, do you know if they have ever

          7  had a serious dialog over how to compensate and

          8  provide for small businesses impacted by the Park

          9  Row closure?

         10                 MR. LEE:  No.  They have among

         11  themselves had numerous meetings--.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I do not mean

         13  among themselves, I mean with any official level of

         14  City government.

         15                 MR. LEE:  No, what I am saying is

         16  they have had meetings to try to figure out how to

         17  access official City agencies, and they only way

         18  they could was through the Civic Center Residents

         19  Coalition by joining onto the lawsuit, et cetera,

         20  which the CCBA has contributed financially to that,

         21  so.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I was just

         23  saying, Mr. Chair, it is pretty sad if businesses

         24  have to have strategy meetings just to figure out

         25  how to access City government on issues that
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          2  directly affect them, and that points to a need for

          3  a process.

          4                 My final question to Ms. Menin.  You

          5  have several, as to be expected from you I might

          6  add, several creative and interesting ideas to deal

          7  with the situation around Wall Street. Could you

          8  discuss or describe the status of those ideas?  Have

          9  you been able to prevent them?  Are they being

         10  subject to any kind of formal review as we speak?

         11                 MS. MENIN:  Yes, I would be happy to

         12  address them.

         13                 On the issue of taxi stands, I have

         14  made this request for two and a half years to DOT.

         15  We have been asking them urgently to put taxi stands

         16  in and around the Financial District, and we also

         17  mentioned that, of course, it would be very useful

         18  in, quite frankly, any area where there is a street

         19  closure.

         20                 Small businesses cannot survive if a

         21  street is closed.  This particularly impacts stores

         22  and restaurants that depend on evening traffic.  DOT

         23  has said that they have been working on it but we

         24  have not gotten any definitive response, and we

         25  really do need the help.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Let me just

          3  clarify, you are saying you put forward this request

          4  for two and a half years now?

          5                 MS. MENIN:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And you have

          7  not received any formal response?

          8                 MS. MENIN:  We have not received a

          9  response.  Just a couple of days ago, I did call DOT

         10  to find out the status of the request, and they said

         11  that they are working on it, and they would get back

         12  to me shortly.  They have indicated that they feel

         13  that it is doable but they, again, have not given

         14  any dates on when this would happen.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I guess we

         16  all have learned that time is relative but this

         17  gives new meaning to relativity and time.

         18                 Thank you, I think that these facts

         19  speak for themselves, and we have the other

         20  witnesses to go on to but I will just say thank you

         21  very much to each of you again for all of your work

         22  for our community.

         23                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         25  Member Gerson, and I want to thank the panelists for
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          2  joining us this afternoon.

          3                 We have another panel of witnesses.

          4  I would like to ask them to come up to the witness

          5  table.  Susan Stetzer, David Goldschmidt, Joseph

          6  D'Amico, and Elizabeth Lee.

          7                 Good evening.

          8                 MS. STETZER:  Hello, thank you for

          9  this opportunity to testify regarding the Park Row

         10  bill.

         11                 I am testifying for Community Board

         12  3, a section of Park Row's within the Community

         13  Board 3 District, and many of the residents and

         14  businesses affected by the closing Park Row within

         15  CB3's boundaries.

         16                 We have been concerned about the

         17  impact on the community from the street closure, and

         18  also very concerned with the process, or lack of the

         19  process, in which this was done.  The street was

         20  closed in name of security, and ostensibly to

         21  protect citizens, but without any concern for the

         22  very people that were supposedly being protected.

         23                 The Park Row residents have been

         24  forced to go to court to have the City return park

         25  land that was taken unnecessarily and illegally.
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          2                 They were forced to go to court to

          3  have the City administration talk to them about

          4  public health and safety issues caused by the street

          5  closure.

          6                 The Community Board has passed two

          7  resolutions regarding Park Row and this legislation.

          8    The first resolution found the closure

          9  unacceptable as well as the failure to communicate

         10  with the community and the failure to offer any

         11  mitigation.  The Community Board recommended that

         12  the City should study effects of the security

         13  procedures, and offer mitigation for residents and

         14  businesses.

         15                 In June 2003, we passed a second

         16  resolution to support the current legislation.  The

         17  resolution supports the creation of a review

         18  process, which would ensure that all communities are

         19  treated equally and fairly.  But in our resolution,

         20  we also asked the City Council to incorporate

         21  enforcement of mitigation for the community, and to

         22  ensure community input into studies and impact

         23  findings.  These requests were not incorporated.

         24  Intro. 185 says that a community impact finding must

         25  reflect examination and consideration of any actions
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          2  to mitigate or compensate local businesses and

          3  residents, it does not state that the City must

          4  mitigate or compensate.

          5                 It also does not mandate community

          6  input.  Again, this has been an important issue for

          7  Park Row residents.  First, the City formed a

          8  taskforce, but only elected officials and city

          9  agencies participated.  An Environmental Impact

         10  Study was performed, but lack of impact by the

         11  community has forced residents to prepare their own

         12  expensive study.  Communities should not have to

         13  raise money for legal representation and their own

         14  studies to raise consideration of issues.

         15                 Input from community residents,

         16  businesses, Community Board representatives, service

         17  providers, such as local hospitals, must be included

         18  in a consideration of impacts and need for

         19  mitigation and compensation.

         20                 Community Board 3 supports this

         21  legislation.  We also find that the legislation does

         22  not go far enough.  The current situation with Park

         23  Row shows that it is necessary to mandate community

         24  input into impact studies, and to require mitigation

         25  of negative impacts on residents and businesses.
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          2                 And, I noticed Council Member Gerson

          3  in his comments several times mentioned community

          4  discussion and community input, but I do not see

          5  anything in the legislation that specifically

          6  mandates that, and I think we cannot ever assume

          7  that that is going to happen.

          8                 Also just another comment on Council

          9  Member Sears remarks.  She, sort of, spoke for the

         10  community but did not stay to hear what the

         11  community had to say, and I do not think her

         12  comments about the Community Board were entirely

         13  accurate.  She mentioned that the council member was

         14  the person for the City to contact, and I do not

         15  think it is one or the other, and I do not think

         16  there is a wall between our council member and

         17  community board, and our community.  I think we work

         18  really well together, and the community board has to

         19  be considered also.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 We are the formal structure for

         22  community input.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

         24  Goldschmidt, Dr. Goldschmidt.

         25                 MR. GOLDSCHMIDT:  Yes, I am Dr. David
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          2  Goldschmidt, I am the Medical Director, and the

          3  Director of EMS for NYU Downtown Hospital, which is

          4  located a few blocks from Park Row, and we are very

          5  familiar with the impacts of the Park Row closings,

          6  and the prolonged effect it has had on the

          7  community.

          8                 There is a difference between

          9  considering the impact to the community on pleasure

         10  and on access to facilities and convenience, and

         11  that is quite different from the determination of

         12  the safety of the community at large versus the

         13  safety of the community that is local.  And, when

         14  you are considering impact of prolonged street

         15  closings, you are talking about what happens to

         16  emergency vehicles that are trying to access

         17  residential areas in that area.

         18                 I was a little surprised by the

         19  Deputy Chiefs' statement about the inspection of

         20  ambulances, how that would be something that would

         21  occur at those checkpoints.  It is well known that

         22  terrorist activities throughout the world have

         23  already involved ambulances as being a way to

         24  transport any kind of weapons of mass destruction or

         25  simply bombs.  So, it would not be prudent of the
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          2  checkpoints not to check an ambulance.  It would be

          3  something that would, of course, be done.  Any kind

          4  of checking of the ambulances, at those checkpoints,

          5  delays the transport, delays the access to medical

          6  care.  In the case of a life- threatening event,

          7  such as a heart attack, bleeding, trauma, anything

          8  like that, those minutes do count, and therefore,

          9  you are singling out a particular population to not

         10  receive the same medical care that is given to the

         11  rest of the City.  You compound that by having

         12  slower transports back to the facility because of

         13  the diversions and the street closings, and the

         14  traffic situation that come up. So, you have now

         15  doubly impacted on the medical care to the

         16  community, especially to the elderly, the disabled,

         17  and those that need the help.

         18                 The other issue is for routine

         19  medical care and access to the facility, many of the

         20  people in Chinatown do use our facility at NYU

         21  Downtown, and now have a much more difficult way of

         22  getting to that facility because of all the street

         23  closings and the diversion of public transportation.

         24    So, it is limiting their access and ability to get

         25  to the hospital for routine measures, therefore
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          2  postponing anything that they would normally go to a

          3  hospital for to see a doctor or a clinic to the time

          4  when it reaches crisis proportion, and now they need

          5  an emergency transport.

          6                 There have to be mechanisms.  No one

          7  would argue that the safety of the community comes

          8  first but there have to be things in place to

          9  mitigate the impacts to the community, whether by

         10  reopening Park Row or by finding alternatives to

         11  transportation or barricades or whatever that might

         12  stop that process.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Dr.

         15  Goldschmidt.

         16                 Mr. D'Amico.

         17                 MR. D'AMICO:  Yes, hello, I will be

         18  reading a letter from Jan Lee who is not present,

         19  and making a few brief remarks on my on behalf.

         20                 Dear Speaker, I wish to thank you for

         21  this opportunity to share my opinions on this very

         22  urgent matter affecting my neighborhood, my

         23  business, and most of all my safety, and the safety

         24  of thousands of families in the Chinatown area.

         25                 I am a proud third- generation Mott
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          2  Street resident, and currently own a business on

          3  Mott Street.

          4                 I am in full support of Intro. Number

          5  185- A, and I am thankful to the Council members for

          6  recognizing this need to amend the Administrative

          7  Code.

          8                 Quite simply, the closure of streets

          9  in the Chinatown area, and the further threat of

         10  more closures has directly affected the safety of

         11  thousands of residents of Chinatown.

         12                 In a part of the City, where streets

         13  are narrow and crowded, it has become even more

         14  difficult to navigate since the closure of one of

         15  the main arteries in and out of the area, Park Row.

         16  The strain put on adjacent streets has caused daily

         17  congestion, added pollution, and a dangerous

         18  situation.  By now, you have read through reams of

         19  statistics, attended many hearings, and listened to

         20  many first- hand accounts of the economic impact

         21  suffered by Chinatown's businesses and residents

         22  post 9/11.

         23                 The economic loss suffered by my own

         24  business, as well as those of hundreds of my

         25  neighbors, has been a setback to us that will take
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          2  years more to recover.

          3                 What you may not have been aware of

          4  is the condition of compromised safety that has been

          5  imposed on Chinatown as a result of a deadly

          6  combination of street closures, without proper

          7  community input and illegal occupation of our

          8  loading and unloading zones, our access for fire and

          9  ambulances, by cars owned by the personnel of the

         10  NYPD and court offices.

         11                 Since the closure of Park Row,

         12  emergency access to the nearest hospital has been

         13  severely hampered.  NYPD and court related employees

         14  have used Chinatown as their own personal parking

         15  lot, taking up valuable loading and unloading zones,

         16  and thereby, causing a condition of compromised

         17  safety by not allowing easy access to residents

         18  should an emergency occur.  These illegally parked

         19  vehicles remain in their spaces from as early as 9

         20  A.M. To as late as 6 P.M., virtually daily, thus

         21  becoming immovable obstacles for emergency service

         22  vehicles.

         23                 With Park Row closed, and NYPD

         24  vehicles blocking the loading zones, cars cannot get

         25  out of the way of emergency vehicles quickly.
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          2                 Bearing witness to seven foot flames

          3  spewing from a ConEdison electrical box located in

          4  the street in front of #1 Mott on July 7, 2003, and

          5  the ensuing chaos of fire trucks trying to gain

          6  access while a police owned private vehicle blocked

          7  the fire hydrant, was a chilling reminder to me of

          8  the constant threat we are subjected to in

          9  Chinatown.  Luckily, on this particular day, the

         10  fireman were able to access my street by way of the

         11  Bowery. Had the fire been in the middle of the

         12  block, a disastrous situation could have happened.

         13  At the very least, access time to the flames would

         14  have been longer due to the congestion and

         15  occupation of the fire lane by illegally parked

         16  cares.

         17                 Constricting this neighborhood by way

         18  of street closures, is akin to blocking the arteries

         19  of a once healthy, viable person.  It should be done

         20  only when necessary, for short periods, and with

         21  lots of consultation beforehand.  I am here to tell

         22  you that a major artery has been blocked, and there

         23  are clogs that are exacerbating the problem.

         24                 Should you continue to allow further

         25  blockages without first consulting us, the health,
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          2  viability, and safety of the neighborhood will

          3  suffer permanent damage.

          4                 I urge you to support this amendment

          5  to allow Chinatown to become a part of the

          6  discussion process with regard to street closures of

          7  any kind.

          8                 I thank you again for this

          9  opportunity, Jan Lee.

         10                 A few remarks on my own behalf.

         11                 These remarks were not prepared

         12  beforehand, they are just in response to what the

         13  testimony I heard today.

         14                 First off, it seems to me that the

         15  NYPD has their priorities a little mixed up.

         16  Certainly, security should be on the top three, and

         17  it is obviously in their mind, the number one

         18  priority.

         19                 I would argue that security's number

         20  one priority should be freedom, to secure freedom,

         21  and I do not think the NYPD fully understands that

         22  any more.  They seem to think that freedom is a mere

         23  inconvenience.  I would view that freedom is never

         24  just an inconvenience, or the lack thereof.

         25                 I forget exactly who made the comment
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          2  that ambulances are not impeded or not intended to

          3  be impeded.   There was an instance one time where

          4  my girlfriend, who's drivers license does not read

          5  Park Row but who was visiting me at the time, and

          6  driving my car with a valid Chatham Green parking

          7  sticker on it, was denied access to the parking lot.

          8    And, I am not talking, I do not drive a big Chevy

          9  Suburban with tinted windows or anything like that,

         10  I drive a little, tiny Toyota Camry.  Clearly, even

         11  if the cop had asked to open the truck, she would

         12  have done it but she was denied access to the

         13  building for, really, no good reason, and basically,

         14  she had to drive around for two hours until I came

         15  back home so that she could park the car where it

         16  belonged.  But, after that incident, I went up to

         17  the Police Officer who was manning the thing that

         18  night, who was the same Officer that denied her

         19  access, and I asked him about it in a very polite

         20  way, and he said, "Listen, I am really sorry to have

         21  to have done that, but I am not even allowed to

         22  allow ambulances to come in here".  And, he said

         23  that directly, and I am an Eagle Scout and I would

         24  not lie, especially because I consider this almost

         25  under oath.  I am not making this up.
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          2                 That being said, another one of the

          3  NYPD representatives said that in his opinion there

          4  is no other way for security by be had around Park

          5  Row and for freedom.

          6                 I would argue, and I have argued

          7  previously at the meeting in April 2003, at

          8  Transfiguration Church, which the NYPD did not show

          9  up to, that there is another way.  I can understand

         10  their security concerns, and though this proposal

         11  may not ameliorate the business concerns, there is

         12  another way to obtain freedom and security, in

         13  regards to the Park Row residents.  And that being,

         14  we can block off the last half of our driveway,

         15  allow our exit of our driveway to come out the

         16  center of our property, whereby, the Police

         17  Department could put their barrier behind that,

         18  which is still I would say approximately 500 feet

         19  away from their building, which I think would

         20  clearly allow our free access to our building, and

         21  their maintaining security without any problems,

         22  other then not having Park Row fully accessed, but

         23  at least some people would be mitigated in their

         24  problems.

         25                 I am also deeply upset by two things

                                                            115

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  that the NYPD talked about today.  Clearly, they

          3  used 9/11, and the fear of a future attack as a

          4  weapon against us to terrorize us and to agreeing

          5  with their viewpoint simply because something

          6  terrible could happen again.  I view that as one of

          7  the worst possible things for democracy, where

          8  people use fear to intimidate others. And then, I

          9  went out there as the NYPD and the Department of

         10  Transportation was leaving, and I asked them, "Why

         11  are you leaving, don't you want to the community

         12  now?  Wouldn't this be a good opportunity?"  They

         13  had absolutely no comment.

         14                 I would just like to close by saying

         15  that, well to paraphrase Benjamin Franklin and I

         16  might not get this perfectly right but, those who

         17  give away freedom for security, deserve neither

         18  freedom or security.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, I want

         21  to thank you for your patience in sitting out the

         22  entire hearing.

         23                 Council member Gerson has a question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Just, first

         25  of all, I assure you Ms. Stetzer that, first of all
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          2  I concur that your Council member and Community

          3  Board have a very close dialogue and I do not want

          4  to represent my colleague but I am sure she would

          5  agree that Community Boards need to be included.  I

          6  certainly share that, and I am sure as we go forward

          7  with the bill, we will keep in mind your input and

          8  comments as we prepare the final version.

          9                 Just, has the Community Board been

         10  part of any ongoing discussion or dialogue or with

         11  any level of government over the issues related to

         12  the closures of Park Row?

         13                 MS. STETZER:  Not successfully.  We,

         14  along with you, sponsored a public hearing in which

         15  we certainly invited all of the City agencies, NYPD,

         16  to attend but they chose not to do it.  That was

         17  quite a while ago, it was shortly after, and no we

         18  have not been successful at all.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Dr.

         20  Goldschmidt, have you had any, you seemed to in your

         21  testimony to have had some ideas as to how to deal

         22  with ambulance response time, consistent with

         23  security.

         24                 Have you had the opportunity to

         25  discuss those ideas with the DOT or the NYPD at all?
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          2                 MR. GOLDSCHMIDT:  No, I have not had

          3  any discussions with either DOT or NYPD on it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, and

          5  finally, Mr. D'Amico, and we thank you for

          6  concluding on such a articulate and important note

          7  as the quote from Dr. Franklin.

          8                 MR. D'AMICO:  Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  But, first, I

         10  do not know if you stated for the record but could

         11  you do so as to where you reside?

         12                 MR. D'AMICO:  I reside at 215 Park

         13  Row, New York, New York, 10038.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And, where is

         15  that in relation to the closed street?

         16                 MR. D'AMICO:  That is on the closed

         17  street, behind the barrier.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And you also

         19  had some ideas that you mentioned as to the

         20  reorientation of the entrance way into the parking

         21  lot.  Have you had the opportunity to forward those

         22  ideas, you or your building association, to any

         23  level of government and have you received any

         24  feedback on that?

         25                 MR. D'AMICO:  I have never had the

                                                            118

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  opportunity, face to face, to demonstrate them to

          3  the NYPD.

          4                 So far as I know, outside of the one

          5  meeting that we did have, where I did tell that

          6  idea, there has been no response from them.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Did you

          8  receive any response to your idea that you said you

          9  put forth in that meeting?

         10                 MR. D'AMICO:  No, I have not.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, thank

         12  you each very, very, very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I thank everybody

         14  for participating in this afternoon's hearing, and

         15  there being no other witnesses, this hearing of the

         16  Transportation Committee is adjourned.

         17                 (Meeting adjourned 2:54 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 3rd day of May 2004.
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          9            I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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